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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that
it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”)
of Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Information
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Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

Business Review

2013 was a year started cloudily with a rebound in overall
performance of the Group. During the year, as the Group commenced
the provision of the ASIC Service in the United States market and the
demand from the United States market for Electronic Cigarette was
expanding, a substantial increase in revenue from the provision of
tailor-made integrated circuit (“1C") solutions and sale of tailor-made
ICs to customers under the ASIC Section was achieved. Due to keen
competition in the IC industry as well as stagnant demand in the IC
industry which was caused by the on-going debt crisis in Europe, the
revenue from the independently developing and sale of generically-
applicable ICs in the market under the Standard IC Section was still
poor. As a result, the loss of the Group for the year 2013 was
substantially reduced as compared to that of the year 2012 with the
increase in revenue and gross profit and absence of the one-off
expenses incurred in connection with the initial listing of the shares of
the Company on 19 January 2012. On one hand, the Group took
cautious control of cost. On the other hand, the Group continued to
enhance research and development (“R&D") activities with a view to
diversifying new IC products and improving existing IC products so as
to maintain market competitiveness. Nevertheless, most of the
customers took prudent view in project investment by observing the
market changes and the poor market sentiment still prevails, the
customers still inclined to longer process of new IC models evaluation,
acceptance and modification work and hence, the completion time of
development had been extended. The Group had only launched 4
new IC models during the year 2013 and had 14 new IC models
under development as at 31 December 2013.

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s
performance, financial position and other information in the year
2013 with shareholders in the following section of management
discussion and analysis.

In order to become one of the major IC solution providers in Asia, the
Group is expected to continue to achieve the business objectives as
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 December 2011 (the
“Prospectus”) despite the delay in the establishment of Suzhou office
resulted from uncertain market condition. Please refer to the following
section of comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress for details.
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Apart from our commitment to the development of our core business,
we will actively make progress to generate growth and strive for
potential and new business opportunities.

Corporate Governance

The Group remains committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. All board committees have effectively
supported the Board in carrying out its responsibilities. By conducting
its business under good corporate governance, the group’s and
shareholder’s long term interests will be maximized.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere thanks to our
management team, employees and business partners for their
continuous dedication and commitment to the Group. Finally, | would
like to express my gratitude to the Group’s shareholders and investors
for their continuous support and trust towards the Group.

Mr. Lee Cheung Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE W&k DM

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Group is a
fabless semiconductor company specializing in provision of IC
solutions and is engaged in design, development and sales of ICs. The
Group sells IC under its own brand name “MiniLogic” and provides
application specific 1C service (“ASIC Service”) in design and
development of tailor-made IC to its customers. The Group provides
tailor-made IC solutions and sells tailor-made ICs to customers under
the ASIC Service business section (the “ASIC Section”); and
independently develops and sells generically-applicable ICs for sale in
the market under the MiniLogic Brand IC business section (the
“Standard IC Section”).

Business Review

During the year 2013, the Group’s R&D teams completed and
launched 4 new IC models as follows:
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Section Product Name Period of development Period of sale
2 &P EmEE BE & AR HEH

1 ASIC MP1201 Electronic Cigar IC January 2012 to January 2013 January 2013 to present
ASIC MP1201 & F 5 REK B I 20121 AZ2013 41 A 20131 RES

2 Standard IC MP1105 Static LCD COG

Driver IC
BAELEREE  MP1105 5 A2LCD COG R &) 22
EXER
3 ASIC MP1212 Electronic Lighter IC
ASIC MP1212 & F 4T N # £ Ak B B85
4 ASIC MP1303 IR Filter Switch Driver IC
ASIC MP1303 4 5P 4% & 3¢ 9 8 B &) 8%

ERER

The Group had 14 new IC models under development as at 31
December 2013.

The Directors believe that developing IC products with suitable
technology that appeal to the market is the key to the Group’s long-
term success. Hence, developing new IC products and expanding the
range of the Group’s products as well as broadening the customer
base are essential for growth of the Group’s business of IC solutions
and design, development and sales of ICs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ASIC Section

Under the ASIC Section, the major IC products are Electronic Cigarette
ICs, CCD Surveillance System ICs and DVD Player ICs. 3 new IC
models were launched and there was an overall increase in demand in
the year 2013. Despite the fact that the revenue from the provision of
ASIC Service for the year 2013 increased to HK$3.7 million (2012:
approximately HK$0.8 million), most of the customers took the
prudent view in project investment by observing the market changes
and the poor market sentiment still prevails. With the keen
competition and environment, the revenue of the ASIC Section for
the year 2013 increased by HK$12.2 million or 47.3% to
approximately HK$38.0 million (2012: approximately HK$25.8
million).

As compared with that of the year 2012, the revenue of Electronic
Cigarette ICs recorded growth despite downward clash in selling price
due to keen competition. The demand from United States of America
market for Electronic Cigarette had a remarkable expansion. The
demand of DVD Players ICs was improved. Nevertheless, the demand
and selling price for CCD Surveillance System ICs was still weak due
to market environment and keen competition.

Standard IC Section

Under the Standard IC Section, the major IC products are Power
Management ICs, LCD Driver ICs for instrument panel and LED
Lighting Driver ICs. 1 new model IC was launched in the year 2013.
Due to keen competition in the IC industry, the revenue of the
Standard IC Section for the year 2013 decreased by approximately
HK$0.7 million or 12.7% to approximately HK$4.8 million (2012:
approximately HK$5.5 million).

As compared with that of the year 2012, the demand for Power
Management ICs deteriorated due to keen competition. With stable
economic outlook in Europe, the demand for LCD Driver ICs for
instrument panel was improving. For LED Lighting Driver ICs, we were
in the process of developing more series of LED Lighting Driver ICs
with the expectation to attracting more customers’ orders in LED
Lighting market in the near future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EIEE W& DT @

Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

The following is a summary of the published results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as
appropriate. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

REMBERBE

ATRAEERERMBRRRERESER
ENREMBREZBESAYRFED T #
XE BENAGBHMEZ - AHBATEREZ
MR

Year ended 31 December
BE1N2A3MALEE

2012 2011 2010 2009
20124 20114 20109 20094
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAET TAT

Revenue Wz 42,769 31,281 59,134 66,066 25,362
(Loss)/profit after income tax ~ BR TS5 1% (B 18),% A (5,943) | (17,211) 10,796 15,943 369
Basic (loss)/earnings per share A E A (F5i18), BT
(HK cents) &3] (2.78) (8.7) 7.2 10.6 0.2
As at 31 December
®12A31H

2012 2011 2010 2009
20124 2011 4F 20104 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFBT FH&T TFET
Total assets WEE 69,530 64,023 46,604 33,457 11,142
Total liabilities weE 5,217 3,601 3,293 10,942 4,742
Net assets BEFE 64,313 60,422 43,311 22,515 6,400

Financial Review Bt 7% B B8

The Group recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$42.8 million
for the year 2013 (2012: approximately HK$31.3 million), representing
an increase of approximately 36.7% as compared with that of the
year 2012. Save as disclosed in the above Sections, the increased
competition in the IC industry and on-going debt crisis in Europe had
an impact on the demand for the Group’s products and services.

i
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Cost of sales of the Group increased by 33.7% from approximately
HK$24.6 million for the year 2012 to approximately HK$32.9 million
for the year 2013.

The overall gross profit of the Group increased from approximately
HK$6.7 million for the year 2012 to approximately HK$9.8 million for
the year 2013, representing a increase of 46.3%. The gross profit of
the ASIC Section increased by approximately HK$3.2 million to
approximately HK$8.8 million in the year 2013 (2012: approximately
HK$5.6 million), and gross profit margin of ASIC Section was 23.3%
for the year 2013, representing an increase of 1.3 percentage point
from that of the year 2012, primarily due to the increase in revenue
of ASIC Service outweighting the effect of the absence of revenue
from provision of IC packaging service which gives a higher margin
and the decrease in gross profit of certain ASIC products. The gross
profit of the Standard IC Section decreased by approximately HK$0.1
million to approximately HK$1 million for the year 2013 (2012:
approximately HK$1.1 million), and the gross profit margin of
Standard IC Section was 20.9% for the year 2013, representing an
increase of 0.9 percentage point from that of the year 2012, primarily
due to the increase in sales margin of products outweighting the
effect of an impairment provision of inventories made in the year
2013.

Expenses

Staff costs for the year 2013 were approximately HK$6.4 million (2012:
approximately HK$6.1 million), representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.3 million with that of the previous year. The
increase was primarily attributable to pay rise and increase in number
of employees.

Depreciation for the year 2013 was approximately HK$1.3 million (2012:
approximately HK$1.3 million), which was similar to that of the year
2012.

Excluding the one-off expenses of approximately HK$9.3 million
incurred in connection with the initial listing of the shares of the
Company on 19 January 2012, the other operating expenses for the
year 2013 were approximately HK$8.9 million (2012: approximately
HK$9.2 million), representing a decrease of approximately HK$0.3
million with that of the previous year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to reduction in product development expenses and
operating costs, which outweighted certain outgoings generated from
the Proposed and Terminated Acquisition as referred to in page 12 of
this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EIEE W& DT @

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year 2013 was approximately HK$5.9 million. For the year 2012, the
consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$17.2 million.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group generally financed its daily operations from internally
generated cash flows. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had bank
and cash balances of approximately HK$48.9 million (2012:
approximately HK$43.9 million) and did not have any borrowings,
banking facilities or any loan arrangement containing any covenant.
The gearing ratio calculated as the ratio of total interest-bearing debt
to total assets was nil as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012:
nil). Taking into account the cash reserves and the net proceeds from
placing of the Company’s shares in the year 2013, the Group's
financial position is healthy, positioning the Group advantageously to
expand its core business and to achieve its business objectives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group's transactions are mainly denominated in United States
dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. The Group has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the moment.
However, continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure is
carried out by the management and the management will consider
hedging against foreign exchange risk if it is significant to the Group.

i
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2013, 7 employees of the Group have completed
the required number of years of service under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Employment Ordinance”), to be eligible for long service payments
on termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make such
payments where the termination meets the circumstances specified in
the Employment Ordinance. These circumstances include (i) dismissal
by reasons other than serious misconduct; (i) being certified as
permanently unfit for the present job and that the relevant employee
resigns; (iii) resignation when the relevant employee is aged 65 or
above; and (iv) death of the relevant employee in service. If the
termination of all such employees met the circumstances set out in
the Employment Ordinance, the Group’s liability as at 31 December
2013 would have been approximately HK$94,000. No provision has
been made for these amounts in the consolidated financial statements
as the Directors are of the view that these amounts are not expected
to crystallize in the foreseeable future.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities or capital commitment as at 31 December 2013.

Significant Investments held, Material
Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Save for those disclosed in this report, there were no significant
investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2013, nor were
there material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries by the Group
during the year. Apart from those disclosed in this report, there was
no plan authorized by the Board for other material investments or
additions of capital assets at the date of this report.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SRR SRR )

Proposed and Terminated Major and Connected
Transaction in relation to Acquisition of a
Securities and Consultancy Business

On 28 January 2013, the Company entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement (the “S&P”) for a proposed acquisition
regarding major and connected transaction in relation to a securities
and consultancy business (the “Proposed and Terminated
Acquisition”). Finally, the Proposed and Terminated Acquisition was
terminated by the Company on 8 April 2013 and the deposit of
HK$4,500,000 paid on 28 January 2013 under the S&P has been
refunded to the Company. Details were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 28 January 2013, 27 February 2013, 6 March
2013, 20 March 2013, 28 March 2013 and 8 April 2013.

Placing of Shares and Connected Transaction

On 30 August 2013, 40,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company were issued by way of placing
("Placing”) at a price of HK$0.25 per share for an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$10,000,000 under general mandate to allot,
issue and deal with new shares of the Company granted to the
Directors by resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 April 2013.
The placing agent, China Rise Securities Company Limited, is
beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei. Mr. Cheng Tun Nei is a
substantial shareholder of the Company and the placing agent is
therefore, a connected person of the Company (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules). Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under
the placing agreement between the Company and the placing agent
in relation to the Placing pursuant to which a placing commission of
HK$250,000 was paid by the Company to the placing agent
constitutes a connected transaction (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules). Please refer to the announcements of the Company
respectively dated 15 August 2013 and 30 August 2013 for details of
the Placing. Accordingly, the Company confirms that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group has approximately 16 (2012: 13) employees as at 31
December 2013. The total staff costs for the year 2013, including
directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately HK$6.4 million
(2012: approximately HK$6.1 million). The Group’s remuneration
policies are in line with the prevailing market practice and
remuneration to employees are determined on the basis of
performance, qualification and experience of individual employee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

We recognize the importance of a good relationship with our
employees. The remuneration payable to our employees includes
salaries and allowances. Other benefits include training, discretionary
bonus and others.

Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual
Business Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the
Company'’s prospectus dated 30 December 2011 (“Prospectus”) for
the period from 23 December 2011, being the latest practicable date
as defined in the Prospectus (“LPD"), to 31 December 2013 (the “Review
Period”) with the Group’s actual business progress for the Review
Period is set out as follows:

Business Objective for
the Review Period

Actual Business Progress up to
31 December 2013

Enhancing product development by diversifying
into new IC products and improving existing IC
products

Develop and 5 new MiniLogic Brand IC models were still under
launch 12 new development, including (i) ML1370 LED Light
MiniLogic Tube Driver IC, (ii) MP1110 24V LED Backlight
Brand IC Driver with dimming control IC which was
models sold to ASIC customer with its development

work in progress, (i) ML1361 MR16 LED
Lighting Driver with Buck/Boost Feature IC, (iv)
ML1372 E27 LED Light Bulb Driver IC and (v)
MP1205 USB Backup Power Supply IC, during
the Review Period. The completion of
development of these new IC models had
been extended as the process was prolonged
due to customer evaluation, acceptance and
modification work.

As to LED Light Bulb Driver with PFC feature IC
and four more new MiniLogic Brand IC models
under the category of LED Lighting Driver ICs,
and two more new MiniLogic Brand IC models
under the category of green energy, the
projects had not been deployed due to the
specification of market demand being unclear.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEE W& DM@

Develop and
launch 13 new
ASIC products

Improve and
launch 12
modified
existing IC
models

7 new ASIC products were still under
development, including (i) MP1103 18V Dual
Channel Buck Converter IC, (i) MP1113
Class-D Stereo and Subwoofer Audio Power
Amplifier IC, (iii) Ai9123 Low Voltage Video
Amplifier with Low Pass Filter 1C, (iv) Ai8149
Power Management Unit for CCD Camera
ICs, (v) MP1017 Portable Electronic Charger
IC, (vi) MP1209 Linear LED Driver IC and
(vii) RC101 IR Remote IC, during the Review
Period. The completion of development of
these new IC models had been extended as
the process was prolonged due to customer

evaluation, acceptance and modification work.

Nevertheless, 5 new IC models of ASIC products,
namely (i) MP1204 LDO and Tray Driver IC,

(i) MP1109 Portable DVD Power Management

Unit IC (iii) MP1202 Single Time Electronic
Cigarette with blue LED IC, (iv) MP1201
Electronic Cigar IC and (v) MP1303 IR Filter
Switch Driver IC, were developed and
launched in July 2012, September 2012,

September 2012, January 2013 and November

2013 respectively.

Due to the demand from customer, the product
development of new IC model of ASIC

products was one more than that stated in the

business objective for the Review Period.

2 modified existing IC models were still under
improvement, including (i) MP1203
Rechargeable Electronic Cigarette IC and
(i) MP1213 Motor Driver IC for portable DVD
player, during the Review Period. The
completion of development of these new IC

models had been extended as the process was

prolonged due to customer evaluation,
acceptance and modification work.

Nevertheless, 1 new modified existing IC model,
namely MP1105 Static LCD COG Driver IC,
was developed and launched in May 2013.

As to nine more modified IC model of existing IC
models, the project had not been deployed
due to the specification of market demand
being unclear.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Strengthening R&D capabilities by establishing
a research and development centre and sales
office in Suzhou, the PRC

Establish Suzhou office

Recruit 12 new employees with
engineering expertise

Provide supporting services to
Hong Kong R&D team

Explore new opportunities to
cooperate with local
universities in Suzhou, PRC

Collaborate with at least one
PRC University on one R&D
project and to develop a
long term collaborate
relationship

Develop into a full-fledged R&D
centre

Visits had been made to Suzhou
Industrial Park, Suzhou, the PRC
by the management of the
Group during the Review Period.
However, in view of uncertain
economic outlook in the PRC
market, the establishment of
Suzhou office would be delayed
until the market becomes
positive.

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced

Expanding the customer base and sales network

in the PRC

Formulate a marketing plan

Recruit 7 new sales and
marketing staff

Promote the Group's IC
products and ASIC Service

Explore and develop new sales
and marketing network in
Suzhou and Wuxi regions,
Shanghai and Kuzhan
region, and other parts of
the Yangtze Delta Area

In view of uncertain economic
outlook in the PRC market, the
formulation of a marketing plan
would be delayed until the
market becomes positive.

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced

Not yet commenced
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EIEE W& DT @

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company under
the placing as set out in the Prospectus were approximately HK$24.3
million, which was different from the estimated net proceeds of
approximately HK$33.8 million (estimated on the assumption that the
placing price would be the mid-point of the stated range as stated in
the Prospectus). We intend to adjust the use of proceeds in the same
manner and in the same proportion as shown in the Prospectus, and
approximately HK$11.9 million, HK$10.7 million, HK$1.6 million and
HK$0.1 million were adjusted for (i) enhancing product development
by diversifying into new IC products and improving existing IC
products, (ii) establishing a research and development centre and sales
office in Suzhou, the PRC, (iii) expanding PRC customer base and sales
network and (iv) working capital of the Group respectively. As at the
date of this report, we do not anticipate any change to the plan.
During the Review Period, the Group has applied the net proceeds as
follows:
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Adjusted use of
proceeds in the

same manner
and proportion

as stated in
Prospectus Actual usage
REBRER
FARHMER SR
REBIRZERE
MER® ERRAR
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
B 5 BEBEET EEBEET
Enhancing product development LA %% JTAb 55 B B 35 37 = Ak
by diversifying into new IC products ~ B EM MR IRA £/K
and improving existing IC products & K Y 5% DA IN 98 2 an ) 32 1 11.9 9.4
Strengthening R&D capabilities i B R B AR M 5% S 9 e
by establishing a research and Bt LRI EREE
development centre and sales office N o8 B 2% &k
in Suzhou, the PRC 2 10.7 —
Expanding the customer base and BEATENERPER R
sales network in the PRC HE @S 2 1.6 —
Working capital BiEES 0.1 0.1
24.3 9.5
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

1. Comparatively, there were less new IC product development
projects deployed due to the specification of market demand
being unclear, resulting in less actual spending. However, the
completion of development of several new IC models had been
extended as the process was prolonged due to customer
evaluation, acceptance and modification work, resulting in more
actual spending. After offsetting, the actual use of proceed was
less than the expected amount as stated in the Prospectus.

2. Visits had been made to Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou, the
PRC by the management of the Group during the Review
Period. However, in view of uncertain economic outlook in the
PRC market, the establishment of Suzhou office would be
delayed until the market becomes positive.

The remaining unused net proceeds as at 31 December 2013 were
placed as interest bearing deposits with licensed bank in Hong Kong
and is expected to be used as intended and as stated in the
Prospectus.

Outlook

The global economy is still uncertain although the Group has achieved
an improvement in revenue for the year 2013. As the Group is
providing ASIC Service in the United States of America market and
the demand from United States of America market for Electronic
Cigarette is expanding, we believe the Group’s business will continue
to grow over the coming year.

The Group will focus its future development on IC products for “green
energy” devices. One example is LED Lighting Driver ICs for energy
saving lighting appliances. Other than LED Lighting Driver ICs, the
Group will continue to explore other potential green energy products.
Besides the green energy products, the Group will explore other new
ASIC products that will be demanded by its existing and new
customers in order to expand its product and customer base.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EIEE W& DT @

Nevertheless, we need to pay attention to the on-going debt crisis in
Europe and prolonged stagnant demand in the IC industry, which
would adversely affect the performance of the Group. Hence, we will
also look for other business opportunities that will improve the
Group's profitability.

Looking forward, the Group will remain committed to the
development of our core business. Apart from enhancing IC product
development and strengthening R&D capabilities, the Group aims to
expand its customer base and sales network in the PRC. We will
actively make progress to enhance growth and strive for potential and
new business opportunities.

i
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased
to present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group has committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability
and corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the
Group, improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding
the interests of shareholders of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the”CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules as its own
code and has complied with the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2013, except for the following deviation. The Board has
continued to monitor and review the corporate governance principles
and practices to ensure compliance.

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should also attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson (being an Independent Non-executive
Director at the relevant time) was unable to attend the annual general
meeting held on 30 April 2013 as he was obliged to be away for his
business matter.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code regarding
securities transactions by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBE @

Board of Directors

Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 Directors, including the Chairman (being
an Executive Director), the other 3 Executive Directors, and 3
Independent Non-executive Directors. An updated list of Directors
identifying their roles and functions and whether they are
Independent Non-executive Directors has been published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively. The
profiles of the Directors are set out in the section “Profiles of Directors
and Senior Management” of this report.

As announced by the Company, Mr. Hui King Chun resigned as Non-
Executive Director and Chairman of the Company on 10 April 2013;
Mr. Lee Cheung Ming was appointed as Chairman of the Company
on 22 April 2013; Mr. Liu Loi Ying and Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson
retired as Executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director
respectively on 30 April 2013; Mr. Chiu Yu Wang was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 17 February
2014; and Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo was re-designated from an
Independent Non-Executive Director to an Executive Director with effect
from 7 March 2014.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, four regular Board
meetings and six other Board meetings were held in addition to
circulation of written resolution. The composition of the Board during
the year and up to the date of this report, and its members’
attendance record of meetings held in 2013 are shown below:

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Attendance record of meetings held in 2013
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HPR2013F12A31HEFER BT UAEMS
AMEEHERI KBTI THRE
FERAREMEEEEZ REFAREBELAR
SHHAEILZEESMAKREKER2013F

eEAE

Annual
General Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of member Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
REE®E BERRKAE EEg ERZEEE FHEEE REZEE
In number (in %) In number (in %) In number (in %) In number (in %) In number (in %)
RE(EMER) RE(EMNER) RXHEEHE) RE(EHER) RBEHMHE)
Total Number of Meetings 1 10 5 2 2
SEREEY (Note 5)
(MS3E5)
Number of Meetings attended/Total
E Ve GV
Non-executive Director
FHYTES
Mr. Hui King Chun (Note 1) N/A 3/3 N/A N/A N/A
AR T A (R TiE A (100%) i A i A A iE A
Executive Directors
BITESE
Mr. Li Kwei Chung (Chief Executive Officer) 7 10/10 N/A N/A N/A
FHBSE(THER) (100%) (100%) TE A i B i B
Mr. Liu Kam Lung 1 10/10 N/A N/A N/A
Boiit (100%) (100%) 3 F i A i A
Mr. Liu Loi Ying (Note 2) 11 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
B SE (M FE2) (100%) (100%) TE A i B i B
Mr. Lee Cheung Ming (Chairman) 171 10/10 N/A N/A N/A
FR#®EE(ER) (100%) (100%) ~EA NiE A ~iE A
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Note 3) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
RELE L (FIFE3) NE A NEA 3 i A i A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYKHITES
Mr. Chan Sun Kwong 11 10/10 5/5 2/2 2/2
=T (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson (Note 2) 01 4/4 11 11 2/2
PR A St s A (M sE2) (0%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Ko Yin Wai 11 10/10 5/5 2/2 2/2
=EEEE (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Note 3) 11 10/10 5/5 2/2 2/2
RELITL (H:E3) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang (Note 4) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
IR ST (M5 4) A5 A 5 A i 3 A 5 A
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Notes:
1. Mr. Hui King Chun resigned on 10 April 2013.
2. Mr. Liu Loi Ying and Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson retired on 30 April 2013 and

did not seek for re-election.

3. Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive
Director to an Executive Director with effect from 7 March 2014.

4. Mr. Chiu Yu Wang was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 17 February 2014.

5. The Board held 4 regular Board meetings and 6 other Board meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of
management company’s business and is collectively responsible for
the company’s affair under the Board's direction and supervision. All
the Directors should make decision objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and
making decisions on the following matters:

(i)  Setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the
Group's strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(i)  Diversification and extension of activities into new business area;
(i) Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  Dividend policy;

(v)  Material acquisitions and disposal;

(vi)  Reviewing and monitoring the Group's internal control systems;
(vii)  Monitoring the performance of the Management; and

(viii) Determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the
Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board Composition and Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 30 August
2013. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the
Board that should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business
and compliance with policies. The composition and diversity policies
of the Board is reviewed annually and regularly. The Board should
ensure that its changes in composition will not result in any undue
interference. The Board members should possess appropriate
professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing duties
and functions. The Board would diversify its members according to
the Company’s situations and need. While participating in nomination
and recommendation of director candidates during the year, each
member of the Board may consider a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience in achieving diversity for the
benefit of the Company’s various business development and
management. The Board is to review the policy concerning diversity of
Board members, and to disclose the policy or a summary of the policy
in the corporate governance report, including any quantitative targets
and standards and its progress with policy implementation.

In 2013, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board and
considered the Board composition and diversity policy appropriate.
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Management

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to entering into any significant transactions by the above
mentioned officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering
and making decisions on the following matters:

(i)  Implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the
Board;

(i) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

(i) Closely monitoring operational and financial results in
accordance with plans and budgets;

(iv)  Putting adequate operational, planning and financial control
systems in place; and

(v)  Managing the Group's day to day business.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Confirmation of Independence

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors; and
at least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors were independent during the
year.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified as such in all
corporate communications containing the names of the Directors by
the Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed herein, there is no family or other material
relationship among members of the Board.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors, including Independent Non-Executive Directors, should
keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the
businesses and activities of the Group. The Group also provides
briefings and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills, and updates all Directors on the latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors provided
their training record to the Company in respect of their participation
in training activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties
and responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of
which are as follows:

HZE2013F12A31HIEFERN EEHAEARD
AR 2 EEE S 2 534 8 (5 a0 B JF W
SE)BBEALTAREENEEMNETH
AR FHIBMT

Reading Attending
materials the seminar
relevant to Attending relevant to
directors’ the seminar the skill of
duties and provided by  the Director’s
responsibilities the Company position
MEEEH HEHEEES
EERHER HE AR B eEAERE 2
BEZ&EH Rtz EE i & B
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. Hui King Chun (Note 1) v — —
ET SR S A (B RET)
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Li Kwei Chung (Chief Executive Officer) v v v
FHERE A (TTHAAE)
Mr. Liu Kam Lung v v v
BaELE
Mr. Liu Loi Ying (Note 2) v — —
BRESE (M EE2)
Mr. Lee Cheung Ming (Chairman) v v —
FREFEER)
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Note 3) N/A N/A N/A
RIGHREL (HFE3) i A 38 A T3 A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Chan Sun Kwong v v 4
PREXEE
Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson (Note 2) v — —
BRS¢ % A& (B aE2)
Mr. Ko Yin Wai v v —
=SEEEE
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Note 3) v v v
RIGHREL (HFE3)
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang (Note 4) N/A N/A N/A
HOZ R 5 (5T 4) 38 A 38 A A3 A
Notes: M2

1 Resigned on 10 April 2013

2. Retired on 30 April 2013

3. Re-designated as an Executive Director with effect from 7 March 2014
4 Appointed with effect from 17 February 2014
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Lee Cheung Ming and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Li Kwei Chung. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separated and not
executed by the same individual to prevent power concentration on
any one individual. The Chairman is primarily responsible for
managing the Board, whereas the Chief Executive Officer is primarily
responsible for overseeing the various businesses of the Group. Their
respective roles and responsibilities are summarised as follows:

Responsibilities of the Chairman include: (i) leading the Board and
ensuring that the Board functions effectively and smoothly; (ii)
chairing the Board and shareholder’'s meetings; (iii) approving the
agenda for each Board meeting, taking into account, where
appropriate, any matters proposed by the other Directors and the
Company Secretary for inclusion in the agenda; (iv) ensuring that all
Directors receive all relevant information prior to each meeting and
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; (v) ensuring
all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner; (vi) encouraging all Directors, including the
Independent Non-Executive Directors, to actively participate in all
Board and Board Committees meetings and promoting a culture of
openness for the Directors to share and voice their concerns on all
matters during each meeting; (vii) ensuring good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established and followed;
and (viii) taking appropriate steps to provide effective communication
with shareholders and to ensure that shareholders’ view are
communicated to the Board as a whole.

Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer include: (i) implementing
the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board; (ii) strategic
planning of different business and functions; (iii) closely monitoring
operational and financial results in accordance with plans and
budgets; (iv) assuming full accountability to the Board for all aspects
of the Group’s operations and performance; (v) maintaining ongoing
dialogue with the Chairman and the other Directors; (vi) developing
and leading an effective executive team; (vii) putting adequate
operational, planning and financial control systems in place ; and (viii)
representing the Company and managing the Group’s day to day
business.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the Directors are appointed for an initial term of one year and
subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association. At each annual
general meeting, not less than one third of the Directors then in office
shall retire and every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

All existing Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors are entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or fee per
annum respectively. The remuneration of each Director is subject to
the annual review of the Board with reference to his contribution in
terms of time, effort and his expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year
are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses
incurred during the performance of their duties to the Company and
are eligible for share options under the share option scheme of the
Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established the board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, all with specific terms of reference clearly defining the
powers and responsibilities of the respective board committees. All
board committees are required by their terms of reference to report
to the Board in relation to their decisions, findings or
recommendations.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (”Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference that are in conformity of
the requirements of the CG Code which are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the 3 Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, Mr. Chiu Yu
Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai, and chaired by Mr. Chan Sun Kwong,
with all members being Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company in full compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, 5 audit committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 21 of this
report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The function of the Audit Committee include the following:

(i) Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(a)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards. The Audit
Committee should discuss with the auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the
audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under
common control, ownership or management with the
audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party knowing all relevant information would
reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm nationally
or internationally. The Audit Committee should report to
the Board, identifying and making recommendations on
any matters where action or improvement is needed;

(ii) Review of the Company’s financial information

(a)

to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and/or quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(2)  major judgmental areas;
(3) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(4) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;
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TXE

B RS @)

(5) compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

Regarding (ii)(a) above,

(1) the members of the Audit Committee should liaise
with the Board and senior management and the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company’s auditors; and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in the reports and accounts, it should give
due consideration to any matters that have been
raised by the Company’s staff responsible for the
accountant, compliance officer or auditors;

(iii) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures

(a)

(b)

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management
to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have an effective internal control system. The discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within
the Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness;
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to review the group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems
of control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor's management
letter;

to report to the Board on any matters above;

to consider other topics, as requested by the Board;

to review arrangements employee of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow
up action; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relationship with the external auditor.

Major accomplishments in 2013 comprised the following:

(@)  reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a quarterly,
half-yearly and annually basis;

(b) reviewed the external auditor’'s significant findings and
management'’s response to the recommendation raised;

(c)  reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and
the adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting function
of the Group;

(d) reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope for 2013 and the letter of representation to be given by
the Board; and

(e)  considered and approved the 2013 external audit fees and
engagement letters.
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The Group’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by
management. With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal
control system, during the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Company had appointed Graham H. Y. Chan & Co, as independent
consultant, to review the Group's internal control systems and
recommend actions to improve our internal controls.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the
Group's internal control system was effective and in compliance with
the requirements of the CG Code C.2.1 for the year ended 31
December 2013.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditors for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
recommended approval to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirement of the CG Code. In accordance with
provisions set out in the CG Code are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the 3
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sun Kwong,
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai, and chaired by Mr. Chan Sun
Kwong.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, 2 remuneration committee

meetings were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page
21 of this Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee includes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vii)

(viii)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’'s corporate goal and
objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, person rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or remove of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Major accomplishments in 2013 comprised the following:

(i)

reviewed matters relating to the remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are in conformity with the requirements
of the CG Code and are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the 3
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sun Kwong,
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai, and chaired by Mr. Chan Sun
Kwong.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, 2 Nomination Committee
meetings were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page
21 of this Report.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee includes:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the Chairman and the chief executive of
the Company; and

(v)  where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the general meeting,
it should set out in the circular to shareholders and/or
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting why the Nomination Committee believes he
should be elected and the reasons why the Nomination
Committee considers him to be independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Major accomplishments in 2013 comprised the following:

recommended to the Board with respect to the retirement and
re-election of Directors at the last annual general meeting held
on 30 April 2013; and

recommended to the Board the appointment of Mr. Lee Cheung
Ming as Chairman of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board held 2 meetings for the purpose of reviewing the
compliance of corporate governance policies for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The duties of the Board include:

(iii)

(iv)

to develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Group’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the CG Report.
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Major accomplishments in 2013 comprised the following:

(i) evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and made appropriate amendments;

(i) arranged the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; and

(i) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Auditor's Remuneration

Graham H.Y. Chan & Co. was re-appointed as the auditors of the
Company and its subsidiaries at the annual general meeting held on
30 April 2013.

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
external auditor to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately HK$420,000 and HK$146,000
respectively. The non-audit service represented service fees for the
annual review of internal control and other non-audit services.

The accounts for the year 2013 were audited by Graham H. Y. Chan
& Co. whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Audit Committee has recommended to the
Board that Graham H. Y. Chan & Co. be re-appointed as the auditors
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
Group’s financial statements to give a true and fair view. The
responsibilities of auditors in respect of the financial statements are
set out in the report of the auditors forming part of this Report.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls
with a view to ensuring that shareholders’ investments and the
Group's assets are safeguarded. This responsibility is primarily fulfilled
on its behalf by the Audit Committee. In the year under review,
Graham H. Y. Chan & Co., as independent consultant, has reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group,
covering material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Risk Management

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review
and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The management of the Company reviews all significant control
policies and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the
Board and Audit Committee.

Company Secretary

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company Secretary was
Mr. Liu Kam Lung.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Company Secretary
are set out in the “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of
this report.

A written record had been received by the Company from Mr. Liu
Kam Lung to confirm that he took not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2013. The
Company is of the view that Mr. Liu has complied with Rule 5.15 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting

In order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting are subject to the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”), and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)")
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM") to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition pursuant to Article 58 of
the Articles; and
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(i) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such EGM, the Eligible
Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned by the
Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Apart from sending email to info@megalogic.com.hk, shareholders
may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing
them to the headquarter and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Unit 508-509, 5th Floor, IC Development
Centre, No. 6 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park,
Pak Shek Kok, Shatin, N.T. Hong Kong, which with effect from 18
February 2014, was changed to Suite 2101, 21/F., Chinachem
Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, by post
or by fax to (852) 2539 0323, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law (Revised)
of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles, Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may by means of requisition convene
an EGM following the procedures set out above.

Investor Relationship

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Cheung Ming, aged 42, is the Chairman of the Company.
He was appointed an Executive Director on 3 August 2012 and was
subsequently appointed as the Chairman on 22 April 2013. He is
responsible for business development of the Group in the mainland
China. Mr. Lee holds graduate certificate in Business Administration
from Beijing Economy Management College. He has more than 17
years of experience in marketing, strategic management and business
operation in the mainland China. Mr. Lee worked for Xiamen Poyi
Real Estate Company Limited as development division manager from
December 1996 to December 1998. He then worked for Xiamen
Hong Du Park Hotel as deputy general manager from January 1999 to
December 2004. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lee had worked
for Hongasteel (Xiamen) Technology Company Limited as general
manager since January 2005. As at 31 December 2013, he held
interest in 2,500,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 1.04% interest of the total issued capital of the
Company. Mr. Lee is brother-in-law of Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, a
substantial shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the
Company.

Mr. Li Kwei Chung, aged 44, is one of the founders of the Group,
chief executive officer, engineering director and compliance officer of
the Company. He was appointed as an Executive Director on 15 June
2011. Mr. Li has been a director of one subsidiary of the Company,
MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, since September 2004 and is
also a director of all of our subsidiaries. He is responsible for daily
operations, research and development activities, procurement and
quality control of the Group. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree of
Engineering and master’s degree of Science in Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong in 1992 and 1998 respectively. He has over
19 years of experience in the semiconductor field. Mr. Li was
appointed as a member of the Information and Communication
Technology R&D Centre Technology Review Panel of ASTRI for the
years of 2011 to 2014. His responsibilities includes advising ASTRI on
improving the quality of ASTRI's R&D projects in terms of technical
merit as well as the commercialisation prospects and technology
transfer potential of the projects and assisting in evaluating the
effectiveness of funded projects in terms of assisting Hong Kong and
Pearl River Delta based companies’ to upgrade their technological
competitiveness. As at 31 December 2013, he held interest in
11,762,842 shares of the Company, representing approximately 4.90%
interest of the total issued capital of the Company.
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Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 50, is finance director and company
secretary of the Company. He was appointed as an Executive Director
on 31 March 2011. He has been a director of one subsidiary of the
Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited since February 2011
and is also a director of all of our subsidiaries. Mr. Liu is responsible
for accounting and finance management, investor relation as well as
company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained a Diploma
of Business Administration from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990 and is currently an
Associate of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an
Associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
of the United Kingdom, an Associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, a fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a full member of the Society of Registered
Financial Planners and an Associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He has over 23 years of experience in the financial industry.

Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, aged 53, is an executive director of the
Company with effect from 7 March 2014. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 23 December
2011 and re-designated as an executive director of the Company with
effect from 7 March 2014. Dr. Sung has been a Senator of Junior
Chamber International since 2005. He obtained a bachelor’s degree
of Commerce in Management and Marketing from Curtin University
of Technology in Australia in 2002 and also obtained a master’s
degree of Accountancy from Lingnan University in 2012. Dr. Sung has
been awarded the distinction of an honorary doctor in Business
Administration from American Purlinton University on 12 January
2013. He is currently a member of Institute of Public Accountants.
From September 2004 to February 2014, Dr. Sung served as the
managing director and a responsible officer of King’'s HT Securities
Limited, a licensed corporation under the SFO, and accumulated
working in the securities industry for about 11 years. Before entering
into securities industry, he worked for several solicitors’ firms in Hong
Kong for about 17 years.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZaISREBEBR A T

BE&£EXE S0 AARAMNMBRERA
AMWME - MMN201MFIAZIBEZTANTE
FoBEAEBA01ME2ARARNRD R —EHE
RAMAERBERARNES  TAKRMSH
BREMNESFS BEALEBESHRYBER
REEBRERAEENATMESTE -BLE
R190F EF B/ CE2RCRB AR B/ LK
LB)ERIFEENE BEAEESHIIA
so 8 NEFHFWERTRAEAEEE
THMEREEE FHARGHIMAE
M EREMBEEXNKERE
ST E MR ERMEMIFLR -

Il

M M 18

3
W 3
18 mo

v

baI1]

7

S B

Bt
S

REBEELE S35 A2014F387HREALXRD
B ZHITEE AR 201MEFE12A23BEEEA
RABZBMIFERTEBRATAERBZH
TEEIWH2014FE3 78 4% - R+ BH2005
FROABBEFHSMHSEE - tR2002F
EESBRNEEMBALEREXETELRMES
BB RN FEEEALHRS
B T8 N2013F1ANRH RELER
EFTMNE NS T I EE IR LS TR
R ABRMNAKXSHAHESZE - 200459
BZEM4F 2 RETHIEETEBRE
HFHEBRAR (FEHFRBEKRN THFEEE) D
EEHACERBEAER  REFAREHFTETL
ERENFE - RIMAZBFTEN HERES
LREMEHITTIEQ17F -



Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 23 December 2011. He is the company
secretary of Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8265).
Mr. Chan served as an independent non-executive director (from July
2010 to November 2010) of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8109) whose shares are also listed on GEM and
served as executive director and company secretary of Sam Woo
Holdings Limited (now known as Noble Century Investment Holdings
Limited) (Stock Code: 2322), whose shares are listed on Main Board,
for the period from March 2003 to June 2011. Mr. Chan obtained a
Diploma of Business Administration from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He
is currently a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr.
Chan has more than 20 years of auditing, accounting and company
secretarial experience. He is currently the chairman of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Chiu Yu Wang, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 17 February 2014. He obtained a certificate
in Business Studies (Banking) from Lee Wai Lee Technical Institute of
the Vocational Training Council Hong Kong in August 1983. He has
over more than 20 years of marketing experience in banking industry.
Since May 2010, Mr. Chiu has become a shareholder and a director
of Sparkle Well Environmental Lighting Company Limited, which is
principally engaged in trading of environmental lighting products. He
is currently a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Ko Yin Wai, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 23 December 2011. He currently is an enterprise
consultant for Dongguan Changping Qiaohui Lipeng Plastic &
Hardware Manufacturing Company R % EI5EBBEZB A SRR
B and a marketing strategic consultant for Shenzhen Lanshuo
Communication Equipment Company Limited (R EEREEEN R &
BRAT]). Mr. Ko has been working in the electronic consumer
products industry for about 17 years. He is currently a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination

Committee.
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Senior Management

Mr. Lam Nim Yin, aged 54, joined one subsidiary of the Company,
MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, in March 2007 and is currently
the marketing director. He has been a director of MiniLogic Device
Corporation Limited since June 2013. He is responsible for sales and
marketing activities, logistic and warehouse control. Mr. Lam has
been working in semiconductor industry for about 26 years. During
the period from 1993 to 2009, he served as a director of a company
engaging in trading of electronics such as IC.

Mr. Liu Loi Ying, aged 36, joined one subsidiary of the Company,
MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, in July 2003 and is currently
the senior R&D product manager and team leader in the R&D
Department. He is responsible for leading a team of engineers in R&D
operations, and supporting sales and marketing activities. Mr. Liu was
an executive director of the Company during the period from 15 June
2011 to 30 April 2013. He obtained a bachelor's degree of
Engineering in Computer Science and Computer Engineering and a
master’s degree of Science in IC Design Engineering from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2001 and 2005
respectively. He has been working in the semiconductor field for
about 12 years.

Ms. Chan Lok Yin, aged 29, has been appointed as Assistant to
Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company since 1
April 2012 and is responsible for accounting and financial
management, and company secretarial matters of the Group.
Currently, she is also the company secretary of two subsidiaries of the
Company, namely MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited and
Megalogic China Development Limited. Ms. Chan is an associate of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She obtained a
bachelor’s degree of accounting from Edinburgh Napier University in
United Kingdom in 2008. Before joining the Company, she worked in
audit firms in Hong Kong for more than 3 years, with last position
being an accountant.

Company Secretary
Mr. Liu Kam Lung is the company secretary of the Company. For
details of his profile, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors” under this section.
Compliance Officer
Mr. Li Kwei Chung is the compliance officer of the Company. For

details of his profile, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors” under this section.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operation

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

The analysis of geographical locations of the company and its
subsidiaries for the year are set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 61.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” and note 25(b) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group acquired instruments and computer
equipments for approximately HK$1,647,000. Details of these
acquisition and other movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
40,000,000 ordinary shares were issued during the year ended 31
December 2013 upon placing under general mandate.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company'’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 December
2013 was approximately HK$24,341,000.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last 5 financial years is set out on page 8 of the annual report.
Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Share Option Scheme

Details of the Share Option Scheme of the Company adopted on 16

May 2012 are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hui King Chun (resigned on 10 April 2013)

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Cheung Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Li Kwei Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Lung
Mr. Liu Loi Ying (retired on 30 April 2013)
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo
(re-designated with effect from 7 March 2014 as Executive Director)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson (retired on 30 April 2013)
Mr. Ko Yin Wai
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo
(re-designated with effect from 7 March 2014 as Executive Director)
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang (appointed with effect from 17 February 2014
as Independent Non-executive Director)

Rotation of Directors in the Forthcoming
Annual General Meeting

In accordance with the Article 83(3) of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Chiu Yu Wang, who was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 February 2014, shall hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Chiu has agreed to offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. Pursuant to the Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ko Yin Wai and Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo shall retire
from office as Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Mr. Ko Yin Wai and Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, being eligible,
have agreed to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Directors’ Services Contracts

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for an
initial term of one year commencing from their respective dates of
appointment and shall continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party on
the other party.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set
out on pages 39 to 42 of this report.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals
with Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with
highest emoluments are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Retirement Benefit Scheme

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short position of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of the Company
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Mr. Li Kwei Chung Beneficial owner 11,762,842 4.90%
FHERELE EmEAA

Mr. Lee Cheung Ming Beneficial owner 2,500,000 1.04%
FR#EE EmEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the [ FXXFT#HESN  W2013F 128310 #ES

Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred
to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions He

Ordinary shares of the Company ARATNEBER
Percentage of
Number of  the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held Company
HAR R
e 81T ERTRAE
IR E B B Ry ZEREAE WEZK
Richly Global Investments Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 27,489,276 11.45%

ExnEA AT

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei Interest of a controlled company (Note 1) 27,489,276 11.45%

BWEERE REHAE S

Note:

(1) These shares are beneficially owned by Richly Global Investments Limited, which is
wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no other interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the year are as follows:
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Sales Purchases
HE g
The largest customer BARP 39% N/A NiE A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFP &R 83% N/A g
The largest supplier =AHER N/A N3 A3 25%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHEERE ST N/A 73 FR 83%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in the Group'’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Connected Transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2013 are disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, which do not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. On 30 August
2013, 40,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company were issued by way of placing at a price of
HK$0.25 per share for cash consideration of HK$10,000,000 under
general mandate to allot, issue and deal with new shares of the
Company granted to the Directors by resolution of the shareholders
of the Company passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 April 2013. The placing agent, China Rise
Securities Company Limited, is beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng Tun
Nei. Mr. Cheng Tun Nei is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and the placing agent is therefore, a connected person of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules). Accordingly, the
transaction contemplated under the placing agreement between the
Company and the placing agent in relation to the said placing
pursuant to which a placing commission of HK$250,000 was paid by
the Company to the placing agent constitutes a connected transaction
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules). However, as in the opinion of
the Directors, the connected transaction is on normal commercial
terms where the applicable percentage ratios are less than 5% and
the total consideration is less than HK$1,000,000, this connected
transaction is a de minimis transaction under Rule 20.31(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules and exempts from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements. Please refer to
the announcements of the Company respectively dated 15 August
2013 and 30 August 2013 for further details of the said placing.
Accordingly, the Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicity available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.

Interest in a Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2013, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group or any other conflicts of
interest with the Group.
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Interests of the Compliance Adviser

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company, Ample Capital
Limited, as at 31 December 2013, except for (i) the compliance adviser
agreement entered into between the Company and Ample Capital
Limited dated 29 December 2011 and (ii) the financial adviser
agreement entered into between the Company and Ample Capital
Limited dated 21 January 2013 in respect of the Proposed and
Terminated Acquisition, neither Ample Capital Limited or its directors,
employees or associates had any interest in relation to the Group.

Non-competition Undertaking

In compliance with the non-competition undertaking (the
“Undertaking”) dated 29 December 2011 given in favour of the
Company and set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 30
December 2011, Mr. Li Kwei Chung, Mr. Liu Kam Lung and Mr. Liu
Loi Ying made the annual declaration on the compliance with the
Undertaking in this annual report as follows:

(@) that he/she/it did not and procured that none of his/her/its
associates (other than the Group) would, either on his/her/its
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person,
firm or company, directly or indirectly be interested or engaged
in or acquire or hold any rights or otherwise involved in (in each
case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any business in all the
countries and regions presently carried on by the Group or any
other business that may be carried on from time to time during
the term of the Undertaking (“Business”);

(b) if he/she/it and/or any of his/her/its associates (other than the
Group) was offered or became aware of any opportunity in
relation to the Business, whether directly or indirectly, he/she/it
would have notified the Company of such opportunity, provide
such information as is reasonably required by the Company as
soon as practicable in order to enable it to come to an informed
assessment of such opportunity and used his/her/its best
endeavours to procure that such opportunity is offered to the
Company on terms no less favourable than the terms on which
such opportunity is offered on him/her/it and/or his/her/its
associates (other than the Group); and

(0 he/she/it provided all information necessary for the enforcement
of the Undertaking and made this annual declaration on the
compliance with the Undertaking in this annual report.
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Pursuant to the Undertaking, the Undertaking shall take effect upon
the initial listing of the shares of the Company on GEM and shall
cease to be of any force and effect in relation to a party at the earlier
of:

(@)  the shares of the Company cease to be listed and traded on the
Stock Exchange;

(b) in relation to Kith Holdings Limited, the date on which it ceases
to be the controlling shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) of the Company;

(©) in relation to Mr. Hui King Chun and the executive Directors,
the date on which he ceases to be a director of the Company,

provided that the Undertaking shall continue to be in full force and
effect as against the other parties to the Undertaking.

Accordingly, the Undertaking has ceased to be of any force and effect
in relation to (i) Kith Holdings Limited since 16 April 2013; (ii) Mr. Hui
King Chun since 10 April 2013; and (iii) Mr. Liu Loi Ying since 30 April
2013.

Event after Reporting Period

The Group had no material subsequent events as at 31 December
2013.

Corporate Governance Report

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 19 to 38 of this
report. Mr. Li Kwei Chung whose biographical details are set out on
page 39 of this report, is the Compliance Officer of the Company and
Mr. Liu Kam Lung whose biographical details are set out on page 40
of this report, is the Company Secretary of the Company.
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Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Graham H.Y. Chan &
Co. who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lee Cheung Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
& 3 A% B AT R

a7 GRAHAM H.Y. CHAN & CO.
#&5t=| CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
FIETE]| HONG KONG

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MEGALOGIC TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 56 to 132, which comprise
the consolidated and the Company’s statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Graham H.Y. Chan & Co.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Rooms 3719-26, 37/F., Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

19 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e R HWER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & Z£2013F 12831 HILFE

2012
20124F
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FAT

Revenue Uk % 6 42,769 31,281
Cost of sales of integrated circuits HESMER RIZHS

and provision of integrated circuits /& & BR 7% #9 B 2%

packaging service (32,934) (24,559)
Gross profit EF 9,835 6,722
Other income Hab g A 7 1,241 1,749
Staff costs 8 TR (6,377) (6,071)
Depreciation e (1,306) (1,293)
Operating lease rental — land and KREMEHEES — TR

buildings BF (424) (386)
Other operating expenses Hih g & (8,944) (9,199)
Expenses incurred in connection FHREARX

with listing — (9,272)
Loss before income tax RR P 1S BL AT 1R (5,975) (17,750)
Income tax credit Frigfif & 9 32 539
Loss for the year FREE 10 (5,943) (17,211)
Loss attributable to owners of KNRHEE AEGEE

the Company (5,943) (17,211)
Other comprehensive income, Htt 2wz (IR ER)

net of income tax
Items that will not be reclassified BreEy=28u AR

to profit or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of property, Y- BB NMEREEMHAEG

plant and equipment 99 —
Total comprehensive expense for FRNEHERAZHBE

the year (5.844) (17,211)
Total comprehensive expense for KRR EAENFEL2E

the year attributable to owners of X 48 %8

the Company (5,844) (17,211)
Loss per share attributable to KAREEAEGER

owners of the Company BB 14
Basic and diluted (cents) AR K #5E (B (HK2.78) cents | (HK8.71) cents

Al

Al

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

ZEAISHNEEBERAA



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR B R AR 3R

As at 31 December 2013 72013512 831H

2012
20124
Notes HK$'000
M 5 FET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE RKRE 15 3,694 3,118

Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 17 7,790 6,566
Trade receivables EWE FERER 18 7,013 8,041
Deposits and prepayments e RIERIE 19 2,155 1,406
Tax recoverable AT Y B A 18 = 991
Bank balances and cash RITEB AR 20 48,878 43,901
Total current assets EREHEE 65,836 60,905
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables ENESREMEMER 21 5,217 3,601
Total current liabilities BREBEE 5,217 3,601
Net current assets BARBEE 60,619 57,304
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERREB A B 64,313 60,422

Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Deferred taxation B R 18 24 — _
Net assets BEE 64,313 60,422

Capital and reserves EXRR B
Share capital A% X 25 24,000 20,000
Share premium & 17 0 & 20,437 14,702
Reserves e 19,876 25,720
Total equity A 64,313 60,422

Li Kwei Chung
FHR

Director

EF

Liu Kam Lung
BEE
Director

EF
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Statement of Financial Position

B 75 7R 5 3R

As at 31 December 2013 742013412 831H

2012
20124
Notes HK$'000
BT 7 FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBRRZRE 16 — —
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a directly W —HEERED
owned subsidiary B BB A R B FRIA 16 436 380
Amount due from an indirectly Bl —HEEZEEEN
owned subsidiary iigEsRANGIEEO R ] 16 363 48
Deposit paid BEfESE 180 —
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIR S 20 47,725 41,481
Total current assets BEBEE 48,704 41,909
Current liabilities REas
Other payables H & 1 FRIE 363 305
Total current liabilities BREBEE 363 305
Net current assets BRBEE 48,341 41,604
Net assets BEE 48,341 41,604
Capital and reserves EXR S
Share capital % 7 25 24,000 20,000
Share premium g apingi=| 25 20,437 14,702
Retained earnings REAF 25 3,904 6,902
Total equity ERBE 48,341 41,604

Li Kwei Chung

TR BE&EE
Director Director
4 =

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZaISREBEBR A T
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

M A5 22 4=
MEERBER
For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F 12831 HIEFE

Asset
Share Share Merger revaluation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total

&t Aft HEER RE
B2 B e W it A CE
Notes ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
fiy ez THET TEL TET THET TEL TET

Balance at 1 January 2012 R2012F 11848 380 — 17,941 173 24,817 43,311

Changes in equity for the year HZ2012512A31BLLEE

ended 31 December 2012 ZEREH
Issue of shares upon Capitalisation B BETRR 25(a)(i) 14,620 (14,620) — — — —
Issue of shares upon Placing REETRN 25(a)(ii) 5,000 35,000 — — — 40,000
Expenses incurred in connection with 4 R % 17 % 17 7 4 /)

the issue of shares during the year  Fi 5% — (5,678) — — — (5,678)
Loss and total comprehensive FREBRE2AERX

expense for the year ik — — — — (721 (17.211)

Balance at 31 December 2012 M2012F128318 R
and 1 January 2013 013F1 1A &8 20,000 14,702 17,941 173 7,606 60,422

Changes in equity for theyear ~ EH,Z2013E12831BLLEE

ended 31 December 2013 ZEREH
Surplus arising on revaluation EfYE -BER
of property, plant and equipment 3R 7 4 &) B 4 = = = 119 - 119

Deferred tax effect on surplus arising E4 % BERREESE
on revaluation of property, plant M B# 2 EEHELE

and equipment — — — (20) = (20)
Disposal of property, plant and HENE WEREE

equipment — — = (98) 98 =
Loss for the year FHEE = = = = (5,943) (5,943)

Total comprehensive expense for — F R 2 [ 5

the year — — — 1 (5,845) (5,844)
Issue of shares upon Placing RERITRG 25(a)ii) 4,000 6,000 - = — 10,000
Expenses incurred in connection with & R % 17 % {3 = £

the issue of shares during the year ) &2 — (265) - — - (265)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R2013F 128318 &8 24,000 20,437 17,941 174 1,761 64,313
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B £2013F 12 A31HILFE

2012
20124
HK$'000
FAT
Operating activities ReETED
Loss before tax R F AT S 18 (5,975) (17,750)
Adjustment for: KLLAT
— Interest income — M2 WA (240) (355)
— Depreciation of property, plant — M BERZRERE
and equipment 1,306 1,293
— Gain on disposal of property, plant —HEYE BEERZRENKRR
and equipment — (221)
— Revaluation gain in profit or loss —rrABENEHRE (116) —
— Provision for slow- moving and —HHEERBRTERE
obsolete inventories — 648
— Bad debt —IEIR 12 —
Operating cash flows before BEESEBHARKE
working capital changes ReREg (5,013) (16,385)
Increase in inventories FEEN (1,224) (3,242)
Decrease in trade receivables fE W E 5 BR FOR 1,016 12,340
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments &% & 78 1 5018 (35 00) 5 (749) 8,776
Increase in trade and other payables FERTE 5 K H th FE < BR 3R hn 1,616 847
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (AR EdEadEZHRS (4,354) 2,336
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund BEANEHER 1,003 —
Net cash (used in)/ from operating activities (FR) "REKELEZHZ2FHE (3,351) 2,336
Investing activities REEH
Payment for purchase of property, plant BEME BWELIXE
and equipment PARE S (1,647) (1,311)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE  WEMLXE
and equipment Z B kA — 564
Interest received 2 F S 240 355
Net cash used in investing activities ARBREZBH2EFRS (1,407) (392)
Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZaISREBEBR A T



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F 12831 HIEFE

2012
20124
HK$'000
FHET

Financing activities RMEED
Issue of shares upon Placing fe & F TR 9,735 34,322
Net cash from financing activities REMETHZERE 9,735 34,322
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEYWFEEM 4,977 36,266
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1A1ENEERREEEY 43,901 7,635
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12B31ENRERBELZEEY 48,878 43,901
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Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l& & &

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 85 ¥R AR BT R

General Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 31
March 2011, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is located at Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business was
located at Unit 508-509, 5th Floor, IC Development Centre, No.
6 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Pak Shek
Kok, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, up to 17 February
2014. Thereafter the Company’s address of principal place of
business has been changed to Suite 2101, 21/F, Chinachem
Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 19 January 2012 (“Listing”). The Company is an
investment holding company. The principal activity of its
subsidiaries (together with the Company referred to as the
“Group”) is the provision of Integrated Circuit (“IC") solutions
and is engaged in design, development and sales of ICs. The
details of particulars of subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in note 16.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and all value are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

(@) New and revised HKFRS adopted

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") has issued a number of new Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group's financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. A HIT REZEBITEBHBER

ok AR
Financial Reporting Standards (continued) £ 2 Bl (@)

(@) New and revised HKFRS adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a
statement of comprehensive income is renamed as a
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and an income statement is renamed as a
statement of profit or loss. The amendments to HKAS 1
retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. Besides, the
amendments require entities to present the items of other
comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit
or loss in the future if certain conditions are met
separately from items which would never be reclassified
to profit or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in these financial statements has been modified
accordingly. In addition, the Group has chosen to retain
the existing title “Statement of Comprehensive Income”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. RAHITIRKLBITE BB KR
Financial Reporting Standards (continued) 2 Bl (@)

64

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l& & &

(@) New and revised HKFRS adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27, Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements and HK-
SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether
an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on
whether the entity (a) has power over the investee, (b) is
exposed or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and (c) has the ability to use
its power to affect its returns.

The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards. To
the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
group, the group has provided those disclosures in note
16.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of fair value
measurement guidance for fair value measurements and
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-
financial instruments. To the extent that the requirements
are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided
those disclosures in note 15. The adoption of HKFRS 13
does not have any material impact on the fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(@) New and revised HKFRS adopted (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments
to five standards with consequential amendments to other
standards and interpretations. Among them, HKAS 1 has
been amended to clarify that an opening statement of
financial position is required only when a retrospective
application of an accounting policy, a retrospective
restatement or a reclassification has a material effect on
the information presented in the opening statement of
financial position. The amendments also remove the
requirement to present related notes to the opening
statement of financial position when such statement is
presented.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures —
Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those
new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32,
Financial instruments: Presentation and those that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments
and transactions, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on these financial statements because the Group
has not offset financial instruments, nor has it entered
into master netting arrangement or similar agreement
which is subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the
periods presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendment to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Financial Instruments?

Mandatory Effective Date

of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosure?

Investments Entities'

Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount

Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of
Hedge Accounting'

Levies'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,

with earlier application permitted.

adoption.

No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial

liabilities and for derecognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% ¥R 7= MY & o)

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. M FIT REBITE BB HK
Financial Reporting Standards (continued) £ 2 Bl (@)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not b) EEMEERERZHET R
yet effective (Continued) BIZFT BB BHREER @)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) ERBVBBREEAFIEES A
8 (@)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. M FIT REBITE BB HK
2|

Financial Reporting Standards (continued) 2 Bl (@)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not b) CEHEGEBEARERZHITR
yet effective (Continued) KBTI E B EREER @)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) ERBVBBREEAFIEES A

T E @)

EEEG BREMNBTEMB

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS
9 in the future may have a significant impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities. However, it is
impracticable to provide a reasonable estimate of
that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
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and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of
an investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but
instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is REEREERER —HERE
required to: BEA -

68

obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is
to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. M FIT REBITE BB HK

Financial Reporting Standards (continued) £ 2 Bl (@)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not (b) EEMERKERZHFHFT R
yet effective (Continued) BETB BB ®REZA @)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS EBAMBEREEREIOR B
27 Investment Entities (Continued) BHEBRELEBENRERET B

ST ERE27H (BT R)RE
ER @

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements
for investment entities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
investment entities amendments will have any effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the
Company is not an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments
clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable
right of set-off’ and ’‘simultaneous realisation and
settlement’.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any financial
assets and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
(CGU) to which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the
related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used
when the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was
determined based on its fair value less costs of disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. M FIT REBITE BB HK
Financial Reporting Standards (continued) 2 Bl (@)

70

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Continued)
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any
change to the fair value of the derivative hedging
instrument arising from the novation should be included
in the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 39 will have
any effect on the Group’'s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any derivatives
that are subject to novation.

HK (IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies addresses the issue of when to
recognise a liability to pay a levy. The Interpretation
defines a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that
gives rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the
payment of the levy, as identified by legislation. The
Interpretation provides guidance on how different levy
arrangements should be accounted for, in particular, it
clarifies that neither economic compulsion nor the going
concern basis of financial statements preparation implies
that an entity has a present obligation to pay a levy that
will be triggered by operating in a future period.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HK (IFRIC)-Int 21 will have no effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group
does not have any levy arrangements.
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3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for property, plant and equipment which is
measured at revalued amounts and financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. FEEFHE®@
(b) Basis of preparation (Continued) (b) #RBE%E &)

72

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l& & &

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(o)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 4.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

3.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(o)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s
voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

REISRE

)
ot
i
>
al

3.

FTESTTHE @
(0 HeaHEEwm

MARBEREKERA ZRERER
ERERZE AEREEREAET
ARFIERAENIAE T BIEERK
ERAMERESHHREHR
BEED AEERFHAEER
REHSRHNREESTRAE TH
BAKEZEMBEHBEERBR
B

s HBHEMEERTEAMFTR
ERNBERSHBR &A&E
BRARIENEE

s AKE HMWEREEFAEAL
HibATHBEZBERER

s EHMANRHELNERN: Kk

s FEMRBATR AEEBA
REsE N REIE MR R R BT
MENEERBER(BERB
EEREHLHRERA) -

MEBLARZ&GEE ABRRAEENE
ERAMBLAR ZEGI#ERSE X
RAKBEXREGRNE QR 22
BE&LL - BBME FRMKE
FHEMBRAZBARFRXIIE
AKERGESE 2 BBES AR
ErEHKREXR BEEAEBETFE
HAERMBARZBMAILL -

EakAEMEERE28EERT
FEBRARBEA AR IFEEE
HoMBARAZEZHKRERERE
RARBHER ANRFERER B
FHBESEYFEREREL B

=+
%III R °



3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(o)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

3.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l& & &

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
or fair value at the date of revaluation, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of an asset
is recognised in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated under the heading of asset revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit
or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or
loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A
decrease in the net carrying amount arising on revaluation
of an asset is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the asset revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the asset
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained
profits.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts over their estimated useful lives on a
straight line basis. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose during the reporting period are as follows:

Computer 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Instruments 20%
Office equipment 30%
Motor vehicle 30%

Leasehold improvement Over the lease term
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3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(e)

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated on the first-in-first-out
basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any writedown of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

3.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

All the Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The accounting policies adopted for the
Group’s Financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

3.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

3.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Termination benefit

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Share option scheme

The Company operates share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share based payments whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

For share options granted under the share option
scheme, the fair value of the employee’s services
rendered in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense and credited to an
employee share based compensation reserve under
equity. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted at the grant date. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that is
expected to become exercisable. It recognises the
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, and a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve over
the remaining vesting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

3.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

()

Employee benefits (Continued)

iii. Share option scheme (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification, which increases
the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for
the award is recognised immediately. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share, if any.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

3.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(1)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold or services provided in the normal course
of business, net of returns and discounts. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

i.  Revenue from the sales of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at
the customers’ designated location which is taken
to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

ii. Revenue from the provision of integrated
circuits packaging service
Revenue from the provision of integrated circuits
packaging service is recognised in the period in
which the relevant service is provided.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

3.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z £l

(1)

(m)

(n)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

iii. Revenue from fixed-price contracts

Revenue from fixed- price contracts for the provision
of application specific integrated circuit service (“ASIC
Service”) is recognised under the percentage of
completion method, which is based on the services
performed to date as a percentage of the total
services to be performed under the relevant
contract.

iv. Interestincome
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Operating lease

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases. Where the Group has the use of assets
under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Lease should recognise the aggregate benefit of
incentives as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B 5 ()

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(o) Research and development expenditure

(Continued)

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its

development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in

the period in which it is incurred.

During the reporting periods, all research and

development expenditure has been expensed.

(p) Related parties

i. A person, or a close member of that person’s family,

is related to the Group if that person:

1. has control or joint control over the Group;

2. has significant influence over the Group; or

3. is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's

parents.

i. An entity is related to the Group is any of the
following conditions applies:

1. the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others);

2. one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member);

3. both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party;

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z £l
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% ¥R 7= MY & o)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. FESHHEW@
(p) Related parties (Continued) (p) EBE AL @)
i.  (Continued) i.  (8&)

4. one entity is a joint venture of a third entity 4. BEBRE=-"BBZAZ
and the other entity is an associate of the third RAEl - ME—EBRE=
party; FZEE AT

5. the entity is a post-employment benefit plan 50 ERAAKENELRE
for the benefit of employees of either the MeERBIZEER
Group or an entity related to the Group; I 5% 37 B B 12 48 B 5T &

6.  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by 6. BBXXOMATALEN
a person identified in (i); or s AR H 8

7. a person identified in (i)(1) has significant 7. (MFTHREA i ﬁT" g7
influence over the entity or is a member of the EERATELIRER(I
key management personnel of the entity (or ZHREBYA 7) ZEEB
of a parent of the entity). EEBEKE -

Close members of the family of a person are those ZEAT AR IEEZERE

family members who may be expected to influence, R 58 HH AEZATHR

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings ZATEEZREKE -

with the entity.

(q) Segment report (@) 7 EBIRE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment KEDHREEVBREMZEN S
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are DEMEeRE DR ARANEERZE
identified from the financial information provided regularly 5 M2 B ) B AR MG i K
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the ¥EMEMNMASERSTHE R
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the BREMNTHERKXEPHR LR -
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
Individually material operating segments are not BRI EENREDH T~ & &G A
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the HMB®RE 2 ﬁﬁ 1&12 REKRED
segments have similar economic characteristics and are B wy B fn A AR 75 |$ é i? I
similar in respect of the nature of products and services, E B F R sk o iHE Mk
the nature of production processes, the type or class of RERB O FE J«A E’S EIRE
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or REZLBFEEBEL - BIER
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory weEMTEZEMK DD HBORT
environment. Operating segments which are not B EXRE D GG BIFTAEE A
individually material may be aggregated if they share a —E¥wEDHL -

majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

HEFTHBE RN EEZERIR

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 4.

94

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l& & &

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other information that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based on
assessments of the recoverability of the trade receivables,
including the aging analysis of the trade debts, the current
creditworthiness and/or the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairment arises where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of bad and doubtful debt requires the use of
judgment and estimates. Where the actual result is different
from the original estimate, such difference will have impact on
the carrying value of the trade receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the reporting period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete
inventories

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories is made
based on the aging and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgment and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and the allowance charge/
write-back in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The Group carries its property, plant and equipment at fair value
at the date of revaluation, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. The Group
engaged an independent valuation specialist to assess fair value
as at 31 December 2013 for property, plant and equipment. A
valuation methodology based on cost approach was used, as
there is a lack of comparable market data because of the nature
of the assets.

The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of the
property, plant and equipment and sensitivity analyses are
provided in Note 15.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group recognises provision for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligations and a reliable estimate can be made. Where it is
not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as contingent liability in a note to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited %

Financial Instruments

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

5. T A

(a) Categories of financial instruments () eRMTEMDE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEBREREFRN S MEEDR
liabilities as at the end of each reporting year are as EEEEETEQDT :
follows:
2012
20124
HK$’'000
FET
Group rEE
Financial assets: EHMEE
Loans and receivables: B fE W s
— Trade receivables —EWE 5 EE/TA 7,013 8,041
— Bank balance and cash —IRITEB LIRS 48,878 43,901
55,891 51,942
Financial liabilities: cREas:
Financial liabilities measured at BB AGTER
amortised cost: EREE:
Trade and other payables FET & 5 B Hoth F& - BR 3K 4,284 3,221
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5.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

5. €@ T H @

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) @) eMITEMNDE @
2012
20124
HK$'000
FAET
Company b NN
Financial assets: TREE:
Loans and receivables: Bk & EWGRE
Amount due from a directly ElR—EEEREN
owned subsidiary NN = OB 436 380
Amount due from an indirectly EW—HEEFEEN
owned subsidiary {opE NI OB O] 363 48
Bank balance and cash RITEHRRIES 47,725 41,481
48,524 41,909
Financial liabilities: cRBE:
Financial liabilities measured at RN A2/
amortised cost: TEAE
Other payable H b & 5RIB 43 25
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHEEABEEBERBE
policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are described below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

AEEMNEYEHZEYHER
mERR(EEERERR &H X
) EERRBERBDESER - W0
o] B 1K 45 L o B Y U B R 3 o
EEEEERERELRERNER
Kol BB RO B e E BRI
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

5. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk include United
States dollars (“USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). In
addition, certain bank balances of the Group are
also denominated in USD. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy with
respect to its foreign exchange exposure. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposures
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

5.

€@ T A

(b) B EEE B 2R BUE @)

BB AR
AEBEmENIERR T8
BBANEBEGODEES
SN B HEHETT S B MRS o
mREBROEEBEET(E
TDEARBETARED - 11t
S AEBZE TRITEHRT
AETTAHE - A E B AT &
h L SN R B 7T SZ O R B
KA EBREGERINE
RRrkeRRERERERE
REME =B

AEE RN SRS B R AN
ENEEEERNEBAED
REEOT :

2012
20124
HK$'000
FAET
Group AEH
Assets BE
usD ETT 6,990 8,877
RMB AR 297 262
Liabilities afE
usb E7T 2,165 1,494
RMB AR — 738

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l& & &

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange
fluctuation of the currencies of USD and RMB
against the currency of Hong Kong dollar (“HKD").
The directors consider that the Group’s exposure to
USD does not give rise to significant foreign
currency risk on the ground that HKD is pegged to
USD. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis of USD
against the functional currency of the respective
group entity is disclosed.

i

BR2AF

SINEE GRS JZ 72T
AEBIEAIXETHMARE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

5. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)

A reasonably possible change of 5% in the
exchange rate between RMB and HKD would have
no material impact on the Group’s profit or loss
during the reporting periods and there would be no
material impact on the Group's equity as at the end
of each reporting period. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding RMB denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of respective reporting period for a 5% change
in the currency rate. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk in respect of
RMB internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in the exchange rate of
HKD against RMB.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arises primarily from its variable-rate bank deposits.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on an
ongoing basis and will consider hedging interest
rate risk should the need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
Group's variable-rate bank deposits at the end of
each reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of these assets and liabilities
outstanding at the end of each reporting period
were outstanding for the whole period. A 100 basis
points increase or decrease in interest rates is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis has
been performed on the same basis throughout the
reporting periods.

5.

Bt 7% ¥R 7= MY & o)

€@ T A

(b) Br 5[

e B B AE N BUR @)

AE%@%EZWWE%ﬂ%
HIRMS%AREEH T & H A
SENREFEN LN NER
BREARTE TIr88HAE
BREREFRZIEABRE
REE -BRESNMRABER
BEYAAREEZERERA
B EREBZHREFREE
Ho5% E M E R 7 [EHFHE-
ERTEEEAEANIERE
BMARBZNERRBE 5%
RATAMGUREL X FIRE
BEEEFBETABRAREZ
BRI REE -

TETT
AEBAZZREREFEE
BEERkEg EA#EA KRBT
TR e

7R 5% 18 3R 5 151 4 AT ) ) R B b
B R EREEREE
BAKBEZMNERR YHESR
FEREZEL PR E-

Tl K B2 Z 54T
UNTHEBRESTERSRE S
MARAE B 2 A & F KRIT1F
FETEROFERE B R R
RESMEBEBREIN SRS HM
RKERNZSEERBESS
REERABALER RAEE
EIR A B R ELIE 3R F & 2 b B
£ FA 10016 2 26 59 I R | F 8%

%o WK E IR B GF XR
BH AR ES  RER
S HARE A9 9 AT R LA AR R A B
HERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

5. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z £l

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates
had been 100 basis points (2012: 100 basis points)
higher/lower in respect of the Group's variable rate
bank deposits and bank overdrafts, with all other
variables held constant, there would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$437,000 (2012:
HK$404,000) on the Group’s loss during the
reporting period. The Company’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$436,000 (2012: HK$404,000).
These are mainly attributable to Group’s and
Company'’s exposure to interest rate on it variable
rate bank balances.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and bank deposits. As at 31
December 2013 and 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

The Group has a credit policy in place and will
perform credit evaluations on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. The Group also has an
export credit insurance with the Hong Kong Export
Credit Insurance Corporation to cover risks on non-
payment by customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate
allowance for impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

EREEBRALF

5.

€@ T A

(b) MERERREERERBX @
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%’//T/A“‘ E¥n 777
RERE R ﬁ$%@2ﬂ@
FMEBRBITERERBITEZZF
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2013 12A318 L EENE
B, 1 N %) 436,000 JT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

5. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as the
Group’s top two (2012: largest) trade debtors
accounted for 71% (2012: 70%) of its total trade
receivables as at the end of the reporting period. In
addition, the Group’s five largest trade debtors
accounted for 87% and 94% of its total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
respectively.

The credit risk for liquid funds is limited because
such amounts are placed with various banks with
good credit ratings.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

The Group's liquidity position is monitored closely
by the management of the Group. In the
management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

During the reporting periods, the Group financed its
working capital requirements principally by funds
generated from operations and issue of shares.

5.

Bt 7% ¥R 7= MY & o)

€@ T A

(b) B EEE B ZERBUE @)

FERK &)

RBEBR NEBEAMA
(2012F : ZR)EWE 5 EX
MEBAEWEZERZ71%
(2012F : 70%) * M A £ B~
EERRSET - 722013
FN2012F12A31H - A%EE
AREWRE SRR D M H &
FEUWE SR AI87% KX 94% °

AEEERBESTHZEE
REBRER ARBEEESEMW
EEZHEEEFRRE ZRT -

ERASEMARIKEEKE
SEFNEERBRNE—FE
ERBEHNME 18-

MENE & R b
AEBZEREEERYERA
SEZRBESKR - EER
mBEEREBRTE  AEEE
ZRBREERBRAREZR
SRR FEEBYWKF  UARKE
SEZZ2ERENENEEH
EBREHORBHESFTR -

RBEHRRN AEEXREB
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TR B A o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

5. Financial Instruments (Continued) 5. @RI Am
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) B EEE B 2R BUE @)
policies (Continued)
iv. Liquidity risk (Continued) iv. REBEEREE @
The following table details the Group's contractual TRFVNAEERSRERR
maturities at the end of each reporting period for its TRABECANIBELTT
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up XERESLHBEZREEE
based on undiscounted cash flows of financial ERE WAARAEBBENRK
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the NExFPHEHAEERR - RN
Group can be required to pay. The table includes BEMNEERFENHEESLRE -
both interest and principal cash flows.
Repayable
on demand Between Total
or within Between 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
Group one month 1-3 months 1 year cash flows amount
BIEER REE
RA—{EA —f&8A =@A REeERE
i AR Z2=@A E2—F ma REHEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2013 A2013F 128318
Trade and other payables EHE SRk
H A & TR K 4,284 — — 4,284 4,284
As at 31 December 2012 #2012 128318
Trade and other payables ENE SRk
H Al TR K 3,221 — — 3,221 3,221
Repayable
on demand Between Total
or within Between 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
Company one month  1-3 months 1 year cash flows amount
BRIEER REAH
RA—1{EB —f@A =@A ReRE
AAF W EE Z2=@EA 2—F FERC RHEHEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2013 A2013512A831H
Other payables H fth F& < 5108 43 — — 43 43
As at 31 December 2012 742012612 A831H
Other payables H b fE S 7R IE 25 — — 25 25

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

Revenue 6. W=

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development AEBEFTENEEKREEMRT  FAEA
and sales of integrated circuits (“ICs”). Revenue represents the HE - WRiEAEBRFEHAALES
amount received and receivable for goods sold and services MERHEBRE DR ERSRERNEEG
provided by the Group at invoiced value, net of returns and B WHBREREERTMN - AEERFRNE
discounts, during the reporting periods. An analysis of the BRREDTAT -

Group's revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

2012
20124
HK$'000
FE&T
Revenue from sales of ICs HEEXKERMNKE 39,109 25,192
Revenue from provision of IC packaging service 24t & & 8 3 R & i 25 — 5,252
Revenue from provision of ASIC Service AL ASIC iR 75 B9 W 2= 3,660 837
42,769 31,281

Other Income 7. HfilA
2012
20124
HK$'000
FAETT
Interest income A B U A 240 355

Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BEM

plant and equipment B — 221
Patent transfer income HRREEEEA = 965
Compensation received 2 E 466 —
Rebate of approved project cost REIEE K ARE SR 264 —
Sundry income HMETE A 271 208
1,241 1,749
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

Segment Information

The chief operating decision maker considers that the Group's
activities constitute one operating segment as all of the Group’s
operation relate to the design, development and sales of
integrated circuits. The management of the Group makes
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment
on a group basis. It was determined that the Group has only
one single reporting segment, being the design, development
and sales of integrated circuits. As a result, no segment
information other than the entity-wide disclosure is presented.

An analysis of the Group's revenue from major products and
services is set out in note 6 above.

Information about major customers

The Group's revenue from customers which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group's total revenue are as follows:

7 #B & #

Eﬁ%%iﬁ%“% R BRAKEMRE
EBHERE  FAEMEE %Waﬂiﬁ
A EAUJSE@E’J/E@J%EX BE—&KZ2D
e AEENERERE RN BEMKIRF
BMIEEBEEEMELIRE - NEEEER
*ﬁ—ﬂﬁ 2wy ARG FEME

SRER- - At REBEEEZBELRE
9\\’1%5 D EBE R

AEBRBEIEERMRBOWE D
N LM TG ©

EREIEZFNESN

KELEAEBRBKRRZI0%IALEHEF
A B WM

2012
20124
HK$’'000
FET
Customer A ZFEA 16,636 —
Customer B =FB 6,278 3,497
Customer C ®FEC 5,652 15,355
28,566 18,852
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

Segment Information (continued) 8. ZHMERMm

Geographical information ih 15 & ¥l

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong. The REBREBKURES BN E
geographical location of customers is based on the location of IR EEEPHNMEMME MARBED
the customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods or services. S RE KR - L E - WMENLZEMN
The geographical location of the non-current assets is based on S REEMNMIBNE NRBEEEN
the physical location of the asset, in the case of property, plant BB T o ANEBEIRME N EE H K
and equipment. The Group's revenue from external customers BNNRBRRPHMEENEBEERDEE
and information about its non-current assets by geographical HMERINT :

location of the assets are set out below:

Revenue from external customers RENMNREZFHKWE
2012
20124
HK$'000
FET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 5% (BET ) 3,770 5,048
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong and Taiwan R AEEEEREE 33,211 23,094
Korea 2 H 1,421 1,565
Taiwan = 854 822
USA E3E 3,198 491
Others Hib 315 261
42,769 31,281

Non-current assets FRBEE

2012
20124
HK$'000
FET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 55 (BE) 533 690
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong and Taiwan R AEEEEREE 220 225
Taiwan =9 2,941 2,203
3,694 3,118
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

9.

Income Tax Credit

(a) Taxation in the consolidated comprehensive

(b)

income represents:

9.

FrEHE %

(a) FEZEWHEXRPHHIARE:

2012
20124
HK$'000
FHET

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits BHATIE — B A NG
Tax overprovision for prior year Al SR 2 B 12 —
Deferred tax credit (note 24) IR IR % (M 5k 24) 20 539
32 539

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made since the
Group has no estimated assessable profit for the year

ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Reconciliation between tax credit and loss
before tax at applicable tax rates :

R AEBRE E2013F K 20124F
128318 IEFE I EE A TR
A 4 B R 15 R

&R B m
TEH B -

(b) ZEBABREFTENHRIBEIR R
RBRBABEEEROT

2012
20124
HK$'000
FAET
Loss before tax BRI EE (5,975) (17,750)
Tax at the applicable income tax rate 1#216.5% B i@ F FT 1S B Bl &
of 16.5% AEHRIE (986) (2,929)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FALIE M S AR S A
for tax purpose M2 537 1,857
Tax effect of income not taxable MHMEMEEARRIBALN
for tax purpose B (40) (58)
Deferred tax assets not recognised AERELEFIBEEE 469 591
Overprovision in prior year AFEERERS (12) —
Income tax credit for the year FEMEHES (32) (539)

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZaISREBEBR A T



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

10. Loss for the year 10. FREE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: FREBDHG
2012
20124
HK$'000
FAT
(a) Staff costs BIRA
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments BIEEFEMESHE IR
— Salaries, bonus and — e AR
benefits in kind EW1E T 6,188 5,889
— Staff welfare — B TIEF 14 15
— Contributions to Mandatory —BHERES
Provident Fund R 175 167
6,377 6,071
(b) Other items HiEAE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % - &= MR BT E 1,306 1,293
Auditor’s remuneration 1% %5 B %7 B 420 380
Legal and professional fee FEERREEER 1,990 1,331
Design and development costs A R BB 4,208 4,600
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense* HRIEARINEER A 32,934 22,992

* including reversal for slow-moving and obsolete inventories of *
approximately HK$386,000 (2012: provision of HK$648,000)

LI585 N R 17 & (31 9 49 386,000 7% 7T (2012

F : #5648,0007 7T)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

11. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest 11. EE R A EE S HF M A T &
Paid Individuals i &

(a) Directors’ remuneration (@) EEM <
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 BIEEBEAANKIEINZREN
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: EEZMenT

A‘| 08  Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAISREBER L 7

A

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZ201BE12A3MALEE

Employer's
contributions
Other to Mandatory

Directors’ benefits Provident
Name of Director fees Salary (Note 3) Fund Total
HitgAl ‘HnIR
EEnE Es=nd E (fFaF3) SEEMHR &t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTER TER TER TET
Executive directors HITESE
Li Kwei Chung (Chief Executive Officer) — ZHIB (77 H # %) — 806 32 15 853
Liu Loi Ying (Note 1) BRE (M) — 199 — 5 204
Liu Kam Lung kS — 672 — 15 687
Lee Cheung Ming (Chairman) ER#(FE) — 563 — 14 577
Non-executive directors FHTES
Hui King Chun (Note 2) EFE S EY) = = - - -
Sung Tak Wing Leo KRB 100 — — — 100
Chan Sun Kwong RE Y 120 — — — 120
Chan Chi Kwong Dickson (Note1) BRAES (BE5E1) 33 - - - 33
Ko Yin Wai =EE 100 — — — 100
Total A&t 353 2,240 32 49 2,674




Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

MNEERIZESTFMALTHN
B & ()

11. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest
Paid Individuals (continued)

(a) EE®E @

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2012
HZE20NENANABILEEE

Employer's
contributions
Other  to Mandatory
Directors’ benefits Provident
Name of Director fees Salary (Note 3) Fund Total
HEEs et E
e ¥k e (H73) SEZHK At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET FHT FHT THT
Executive directors HTE=S
Li Kwei Chung (Chief Executive Officer) — ZHETA (77 4 #) — 769 28 14 811
Liu Loi Ying (Note 1) BRE (M) — 675 1 14 690
Liu Kam Lung BEdi — 500 — 11 511
Lee Cheung Ming (Chairman) ER%(FE) — 107 — 5 112
Non-executive directors kHTES
Hui King Chun (Note 2) EFE SR EY) — — - - -
Sung Tak Wing Leo REE 100 — — — 100
Chan Sun Kwong = 120 — — — 120
Chan Chi Kwong Dickson (Note 1) PR 2SS (Bt sE1) 100 — _ _ 100
Ko Yin Wai =EE 100 — — — 100
Total = 420 2,051 29 44 2,544
Notes: B 5
1 Mr. Liu Loi Ying and Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson retired on 30 1 BRE LA RBRE K EER2013F4A8
April 2013. 30B R °
2 Mr. Hui King Chun resigned on 10 April 2013. 2 PSR LA R 2013F4 A 10 BE B -
3 Other benefits include car park rental allowance and leave pay. 3 HiBANEEFEESHES MU RRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

11. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest 11. E E R F EE S FMA T ®
Paid Individuals (continued) [ AT )

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration

(b) AEBESFMALHME

110

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
three directors of the Company for both of the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, details of whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in above. The
emoluments of the remaining two highest paid individuals
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as
follows:

NEBEHZE20134 K20124912 A 31
BLtFESFNRERaFMAL
Eh - BEARQRAZREST EH
B EE 1B 5 A £SO R AR o & E2013
FR2012F12831B L FEH T W
HZEREBHMALTOFMMT

2012
20124
HK$'000
FBT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

e RMREWREF
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund & #i £ 2 78 & 4 3«

1,430 1,145
30 26

1,460 1,171

The emoluments of the 2 (2012: 2) individuals with the
highest emoluments are all within Nil to HK$1,000,000.

None of emoluments has been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year
(2012: nil). In addition, none of the directors of the
Company has waived any emoluments during the year.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZaISREBEBR A T

2B Q012F 28) RS HFHMA L
B 3 B - = 78 7T = 1,000,000 7T ©

MBEAR AEEX &R LA AL
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12.

13.

14.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Loss attributable to owners of the
Company

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of approximately HK$2,998,000 (2012:
HK$7,242,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Dividends

No dividends was declared or paid during the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: nil).

Loss per share

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013 of approximately
HK$5,943,000 (2012: HK$17,211,000), and the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year ended
31 December 2013 of 213,589,041 (2012: 197,540,983
shares).

(b) Diluted loss per share

The Group did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the year ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

12.

13.

14.

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

RXRBEBEABGEER

AARBEAEGRAEBEEBREERNA
N AR K R IE 2 #92,998,0007 JT
(20124 : 7,242,000/ 7T) 2 B 1E °

iz B

HE2013F12A3BIEFEE TETR
AT B (20124 « £) »

BREER

(a) BREXEE

HEBENRANBILEEENER
EXREBEDIBEBEAQRREA ARG
47 A 18 495,943,000 7T (2012 4F ¢
17,211,0007% 7T ) & & £2013F 12
A3TRIEFEE#HITRG MEFY
% B 213,589,041 % & 15 (20124 :
197,540,983 % f&% 15 ) 5T & -

(b) BEREFEE

N2 B AL E 20134 2012412 A
318 IEFE I &I EHEEHW
TRAR o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥ BERRE

Computer Office Motor Furniture
Equipment Instruments  Equipment Vehicle and Fixture Total
BAE HERK
BHRE IR B3] "E £E &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Valuation: e

At 1 January 2012 R2012F1 818 173 4,477 7 18 23 4,698
Additions NE 42 1,267 — — 2 1,311
Disposals HE — (543) — — — (543)
At 31 December 2012 M2012F12A31H 215 5,201 7 18 25 5,466
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1H1H 215 5,201 7 18 25 5,466
Additions NE 50 1,597 — — — 1,647
Disposals & 21 (192) - (223)
Adjustment on revaluation  Efh 1% (158) (3,007) (3,196)
At 31 December 2013 201312 A31H 86 3,599 3,694
Accumulated depreciation: Rt :

At 1 January 2012 R2012F1A1H 71 1,150 1,255
Charge for the year FRTH 63 1,225 1,293
Written back on disposals A E A — (200) (200)
At 31 December 2012 M2012F12A31H 134 2,175 2,348
At 1 January 2013 20131818 134 2,175 2,348
Charge for the year FRAZH 47 1,256 1,306
Written back on disposals R ERED (21) (192) (223)
Elimination on revaluation ~ #i$4& {4 (160) (3,239) (3,431)
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12A318 — — —
Net book value: IREFE:

At 31 December 2013 201312 A31H 86 3,599 3,694
At 31 December 2012 M2012512A31H 81 3,026 3,118

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZaISREBEBR A T



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

Bt 7% ¥R 7= MY & o)

15. ¥ - BERRE@®

(i)

NP EEBRERE

TRENAEEME  BELRRB
ZRVE ZEVER -BELERE
RBEMREREEEREEFE X
DERBEEVBEREEREIZR
AFEFEAREZI=ZFRAFER
B-BRATEAEDBEZERDK
S2EWMTHETEMAREZTE
EMREBZUHRET

£ MEE: EERE - RBAKR
(B3 8 B AR AE S A ERE
RS2 AEHRAE HEL AT
#-

E_AME-ERE _RBARE
(BIRBEERNE —R 2B EE AH
B)EYREBEATABREH AR
B EZ R FE - TABEREAR
BAEMIZEIEZ B ABIE-

EZAME- ERERTABRES
ABEBEAEZRATE-

Fair Value measurement as at 31 December 2013

categorised into

R2013F12A31B A FENEDEZER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—H BE_& F=
HK$ 000 HK$ ' 000 HK$ 000
FET FAET FET
Group rE
Property, Plant and equipment ME - WENMEE — — 3,694

Annual Report & #§ 2013

113



114

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(i)

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of all the property, plant and equipment of
the Group measured as at 31 December 2013 on a
recurring basis were categorised into Level 3 valuations.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did
not have property, plant and equipment under Level 1
and Level 2 valuations and there were no transfers into or
out of Level 3. As at 31 December 2013, the Company
did not have property, plant and equipment.

The Group's property, plant and equipment were revalued
as at 31 December 2013 by an independent firm of
surveyors, RHL Appraisal Limited, who have among their
staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
The Group's Finance Director has discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at the end of the
reporting period.

REISRE

i

BR2AF

15. ¥ - BERRE@®

(i)

NFEEBHRERE @

ANEBMN2013F12A31BIREE T
EEXAENTEDE BELEZEB
ZAFESERE-HEE -BE
2013 12A31HLEFE  AEEY
BHREAF —QREERE_AHEE
THME BEEXE TEEE
EHERBEE=H - N2013F12 A
BNA ARBTEREDE BE
P&

REBHME BEMEHH—H
BUAMETEBRFENEMTAERA
AR2013F 12 A31HETEMN %
REINEEIAREBAZEEENg
Bo-RMEARETHER K&
BNy HESECBAIEMTRER
HERERGES



15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

15. ¥ - BERRE@®

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value (i) BEEE=ZRAFETEW
measurements =g
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
& B BT FABENGAZE BE
Property, plant and equipment Cost approach Pricing index 0% to-17%
ME - WEREHE B A% MEEH 0% E-17%
Estimated useful lives 40 months to 60 months
hEH e AR 4018 A £601E A

The fair value of property, plant and equ

using cost approach of which the historical cost is adjusted with
producer pricing index in the respective suppliers’ locations and

with estimated useful lives.

The fair value measurement is positively
index and to the estimated useful lives.

ipment are determined ME BERRENATERAZEERA

AEE  REB R BB AT &SRR
FREEEMERBABELKAR -

correlated to the price AT EFEDEAYERBRAEGFEAE

PR 2 IEHRBE

The movements during the period in the balance of these Level HAE=MATEFEEARNEBHOT -
3 fair value measurements are as follows:
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 3,118
Additions NE 1,647
Depreciation charge for the year FAFEREZ (1,306)
Disposals HeE —
Surplus on revaluation reserve B BBREE 119
Gain or losses in profit or loss FFABEEM S EL 116
As at 31 December 2013 2013412 A31H 3,694
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Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l& & &

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15. % BERRZHE@®
Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of an asset is EHEEEANTMNESHEENEM
recognised in other comprehensive income, and accumulated FENRGEPRER TR EEESHHER
under the heading of asset revaluation reserve, except to the BRMHEHMEBRELR —BEE AL
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset BEREXANBERANEGHAER R EZ
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase B Bz mEABRZERAN - AR
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease EGEENREmMFRERL  MEBIBT
previously expensed. A decrease in the net carrying amount ANEZEEZAMEGHEENEEEGH
arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in profit or loss BARLEH(INE)  AIEBIEANER o
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the
asset revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
that asset.
Had the Group's property, plant and equipment been carried at MAEENYE  BME KRE KRB
cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying values of S E AE - BR2013F12A31B &
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2013 and 31 202F12A3MEMYE - BEREED
December 2012 would have been stated as follows: REEZTERNOT :
2013
20134
Computer equipment B R 290 205 85
Instruments TA 9,465 6,092 3,373
Office equipment WAERE 12 12 -
Motor vehicle RE 166 166 —
Furniture and fixture FRERKE 21 13 8
Leasehold improvement HEYEEE 150 150 —
10,104 6,638 3,466
2012
20124
Accumulated Carrying
Cost depreciation values
N ZEinE FREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHETT FHTT
Computer equipment ER R 514 426 88
Instruments IAa 9,716 6,632 3,084
Office equipment WAERME 44 44 —
Motor vehicle RE 166 166 —
Furniture and fixture RERES 90 77 13
Leasehold improvement HEMEREE 150 150 —
10,680 7,495 3,185

)
i
i
>
al




Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

16. Investments in Subsidiaries

16.

(a) Particulars of the Subsidiaries of the

(b)

Company

At as 31 December 2013, the Company had direct or
indirect interest in the following subsidiaries, all of which
are private companies, particulars of which are set out

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

RHEBLARZRE

(a)

RAAMBARFS

M2013F 128318 "ARIENUT
WEBARTHEEEE KM ZEER
ZERNAEALERT  FBHOT

below:
Proportion of ownership interest
RAEERERLL A
Group's Interest
Place of Incorporation  Particulars of Issued Effective Held by The  Held by A Principal
Name of Company and Operation and Paid Up Capital Interest ~ Company  Subsidiary Activities
ALK BETREH AEEH ApE —HKE
RARER KERE RAFEE ENEE REREE LARFF TEXH
Minilogic Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% — Investment
Us$1 holdings
HBRLES 1REEE T REER
ERR
Megalogic Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% — Dormant
US$1
HBRLES 1REEE T NEBHRAF
ERR
MiniLogic Device Corporation Hong Kong 7,651,200 ordinary 100% — 100% Design,
Limited (“MiniLogic HK") share of HK$1 development
and sales of
ICs
MERHAERRR BB 7,651,200 & IR & REr - RAER
(IMralm®aER]) BT ERR HEEK

Amount due from subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amounts due

from subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and

repayable on demand. The carrying amount approximates
to its fair value as at the reporting date.

(b)

JE WS /B8 2 =) BR 7K

720134F & 201212 A318 © IR
MEBARIREAEER 2BV E
EEXKEE RAREHE &KX
EHEEDEHEEAFEES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% =R 3% MY 5 E (@)
17. Inventories 17. &
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#& T FET
Group KE
Raw materials Rk 1,860 983
Work in progress gl 2,394 2,599
Finished goods K@ 3,934 3,768
8,188 7,350
Less: Provision for slow-moving and A R EE N A R
obsolete inventories FEBE (398) (784)
7,790 6,566

At as 31 December 2013, slow-moving and obsolete inventories
amounting to approximately HK$398,000 (2012: HK$784,000)
had been fully provided. Apart from that no inventory was
carried at net realisable value.

18. Trade Receivables

MR2013F12A31H B EHENBEREFS
#9398,0005% 7T (2012 £F © 784,000 7T)
E2mEBEN TEFENTERFE

N

18. B E 5 R

2013
2013

HK$°000
TER

Group RE
Trade receivables U E 5 R

7,013

2012
20124
HK$'000
FET

8,041

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAISREBEAR AT



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

18. Trade Receivables (continued)

(@) Aging analysis

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from
“cash on delivery” to 90 days to its trade customers as at
31 December 2013 and 2012. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables at the end of each reporting
period, presented based on the invoice date:

Bt 7% ¥R 7= MY & o)

18. EWE J IR @)

(a)

fRiR 0T

M20134F K20124 128310 A&
EREAEESRFPIRHIERF
FIZAMNEEH UTERESF
X&%TE%EWWEHT%$
Y BR e T

2012

20124

HK$'000

FET

0-30 days 0-30H 3,681 1,827
31-60 days 31-60 H 1,761 1,858
61-90 days 61-90 H 1,119 1,891
More than 90 days HB3mo0H 452 2,465
7,013 8,041

Amounts included in trade receivables at 31 December
2013 and 2012 related to both IC sold and services
performed under ASIC services contracts and invoiced to
those customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 71% (31
December 2012: 70% from the largest customer) of the
total trade receivable was due from the Group’s top two
customers during current year. The Group has
implemented policies that require appropriate credit
checks on potential customers before granting credit. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties. The Group’s exposure and
credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored by
management. The maximum credit risk of such financial
assets is represented by the carrying value of asset.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an
internal credit assessment process to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits attributed to customers are
reviewed by the management regularly. In determining
recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers
any change in credit quality of the trade receivable from
the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period and no impairment is necessary for these
balances which are not past due.

MR20134F &2012F 12 A31H » 3] A
FEUWE 5 BR 3H) 51 TE BL & AN B K 4R
ERBEASICREEORERSE A
B wWEmZEEFPAARE -

MRERNERE SRERBETENTI%
(20124128318 : 70% % B & K
BERE)RBAEENSFEFNNMA
%ﬁ EAfAEEEBREREER
Ko AEEBEHERE  BEXRXEH
EENEECERPHETHEEEES

B AEENBRASELEEERY
mﬁiﬁﬁﬁ 25 WEEFWQ
EAKEMESNEREESTF

EMEE¥@ HHEEREENR
BEERARASEEMNKEE-

REREMFELZH  AEBEE
AAMEEFGHEREFAFHEESR
ﬁ%@%%%&ﬁi%ﬁmﬁf
B-RTEPNEERBEHREEE
*%ﬁﬁ EERWE SRR
WEREER AEEEZES AR
HEEER=E W¢%$$Wﬁ%%
REEEENEAEE  BZFH
KRB ERBFIELRE -
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Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z&l& & &

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

18. Trade Receivables (continued)

(b) Trade receivables that are not impaired

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with approximately aggregate carrying amount of
HK$3,180,000 and HK$4,030,000 which are past due as
at 31 December 2013 and 2012 respectively for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables which

18. EWE J IR @)

(b) 3 R B 2 & IR BR K

WAXEBERE ZEREHTE
R A& £ %) 53,180,000 T &
4,030,000 LRI FE LR TR - 2 X
IHE 2 A R20134F K£2012F 12 A 31
Bl mMASEHKARERRE
EHBE AEBEUTERZSES
BAEMEARR -

AEENDBRERBRENREE

are past due but not impaired is as follows: SEFEREITWT -
2012
20124
HK$’'000
FET
0-30 days 0-30H 229 274
31-60 days 31-60 H 1,380 611
61-90 days 61-90H 1,119 680
More than 90 days HB3Hmo0H 452 2,465
3,180 4,030

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality up to the date of this report and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. Majority
of the Group’s trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired as at 31 December 2013 has been received
after 31 December 2013.

BR2AF

i

BEBERBAENEKRE SEH®E
BT EEREENE TE LR
B -REAELR EEERE
BRELREEE REREHER
HKEAHEEEZTESEARE
MEG&HPDER AT 2HEE - ®
201312 A31 B 2 @ 818 Kk ® &
MNASEERBOEKEZERE R
2013412 A31H %YK@ -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

19. Deposits and Prepayments 19. RERFANRKE
2012
20124
HK$'000
FET
Group AE
Deposit for purchase of raw materials REREME 2R S 1,629 169
Deposit for purchase of instruments KETAZES — 92
Rental and utilities deposits for leased properties TBEWH* 2 H & kKEZRS 192 140
Deposits for decoration HEZ2HS 130 —
Deposits for design service HERBoEE — 758
Others H 204 247
2,155 1,406
The amount of the Group’s deposits and prepayments expected AEBMZRS RBENKBEBBER —F14
to be recovered or recognised as expenses after more than one W 5] sk B 3R /% [ 2 1) @ #8 49192,000 7% 7T
year is approximately HK$192,000 (2012:HK$140,000). (20124 : 140,000/% 7T)
20. Bank Balance and Cash 20. RITEHRRE
Bank balance and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits ROTEBLASLERERTFHRN &/
with an original maturity of three months or less which are held HMEREBAREE A= AKAT RAIR
with financial institutions and carry interest at prevailing market 1170 % A E 5 B8R HifF 5k » 20134
rates. The average effective interest rates of the Group’s bank R2012%12A31 8 REBERITHEH D
balances are 0.55% and 0.88% per annum, as at 31 December FHEBRFEF X5 R %0.55% 2 0.88% ©
2013 and 2012 respectively.
2012
20124
HK$’000
FET
Group K&
Fixed deposit with banks RITEEF K 43,296 30,057
Cash at bank and in hand RITREFRS 5,582 13,844
48,878 43,901
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% R 2 Bt 5 ()
20. Bank Balance and Cash (continued) 20. RITERERAE @
2013 2012
2013 % 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Company N
Fixed deposit with banks RITEEF K 43,296 30,057
Cash at bank and in hand WITRETFRS 4,429 11,424
47,725 41,481
21. Trade and Other Payables 2. ERESZREMENERER
2013 2012
20136 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Group K&
Trade payables ENE SRR 2,222 1,524
Other payables and accruals HAubFER KM EET I8 2,995 2,077

5,217 3,601

122  Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZRIGREEHR A A
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22,

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

Trade and Other Payables (continued) 21. ERESZREMENSERR@
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables, presented REBNREHFEHARERE[HZ2Y D
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period, FERE ZESMEBRSNMT
is as follows:
2012
20124
HK$'000
FET
Group KEE
0-30 days 0-30H 871 833
31-60 days 31-60 H 1,351 428
61-90 days 61-90 H — 172
More than 90 days @90 H — 91
2,222 1,524
All accrued expenses and other payables are expected to be P B &5t B 2 Ko H b JE < BR X FE B G R0
settled or recognised as income within one year. FARNEBHIERBWA °
Retirement Benefit Scheme 22. RIKBERIGFHE

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees employed.
The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000 (HK$ 20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions to
the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in fund under the control of trustees. Total
contributions paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$175,000 and HK$167,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 respectively,
which had been recognized as expenses and included in staff
costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment of
retirement benefits beyond the contributions as described
above.

AEBEMEAEREELSHEBERS
BHMERTE SR EIGA R E T ED
Baitgl((aEesta)) aBEe:te
THBYEFEAETEN TR MFRAKE
Zlo-REREESTE AEBEMEES
D REREEBBUWAMNSY% A ZTEI1E
Ht s A I A A& B 25,0008 T
(201246 A 2 81 /20,0008 L) & LR °
MEZETEE LA KBRS -

BESHEMNEELAAEBENEED H
BHE BEcHEIAZS - AKEREE
20134 & 2012F 12 A31 8 L F E M & &
SEHEENHNENNERBED RO A
175,000 7T % 167,000 70 * 25 2% E

RAETHERGEE2ZAKERYI A
BT -

ANEE R £t o
HRKABHNEL-

I 48 H i B K #) 32
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

23. Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 16 May 2012 (“the Adoption Date”).
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years effective from 10 July 2012 of the scheme and will expire
on 9 July 2022.

The purpose of the Share Options Scheme is to provide
incentives to the participants. The participants of the Share
Option Scheme, as absolutely determined by the Board, include:

(a)

any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive directors) of any member of the
Group or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (“Invested Entity”);

any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAISREBEER L T

23. BRETE

AABRIFP2012F5 816 H ([EFRAHH )
M—IERE AR AT B ([IERRERT 2] ) - BEAR
s3I H2012F7 8108 £10F RN A K
BHZE20229F7 898 Em °

BREAEZENRERNEZEE - B

Fé.ﬁr?ﬂz/ mE(HHE

(a)

SERRTE)

AEBEITMKERARARAEERF
EEAREZENER(ZREER
B ZEAEE (THREBREE
B BREEARTES):

AEBEMKEABAREAZHRE
Eni%ZEﬂéF%ﬂﬁi%(“?E.‘ﬁiél?

o )ﬂﬂ
NN

4

bkt
Jdiﬂ’r
N

AASEEMKE AR HEMZHR
2E %hﬁi\if%&HHKZEﬂf
AEBEMKEABASREAZERE
BRZERNERP:

IJ?ZKE@EHBZE\ A SRR
BEREEMR B E MM
XEZEMALHER:

AEBEMKEABASREAZERE

fi‘%fZEﬂﬁxijZZlSE@EﬂﬁXﬁ
RESERAZREERAEITEM

BHRZEMTEAN R

AEEEMRE R TR AERE
BRYAMALEBREBER
5 T 2 A {7 B (S 2 o 2 ) 5 3%
W -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

23. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the
date of adopting the Share Option Scheme. The limit may be
refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must not be in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general
meeting. However, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may
be determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined
by the Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the date of the grant of the options; (ii)
the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options; or (iii)
the nominal value of a share.

On the basis 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of this report, the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon the exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 24,000,000
shares.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled, expired or
lapsed since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up
to 31 December 2013 and there were no outstanding share
options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2013.

23.

Bt 7% ¥R 7= MY & o)

BREE @

REBREIAERD ZBRERY
ROBEOEE £ M ERBRAERE
AEERARRDBHITRAZIO% &L
RATBERER  HEHREBEE AT FHEBR
RRBERARGHEZEAARACHETR
RZ10% ° A1 - RIBEBAE B RAL
AEMEMFIHECREERRTREZE
PRI ER AT T RIT 2RO BE
ERATBHBERD ETRM Z30%
AR+ @A BEA - [ EaEER AL
BHZBEREETERE AT TEIT2RN
BEIRSBAEZT _EARMRE —X
ARARBEBHITRMDZ1%  KRIFRRAIZE
M b AR R B AR R R RS HE 4 B E R
o MR Z BRER - B REBER

B187Te

BEREITEEIEEREREHZTH
FRIFHABAERTE  MBRBESE
F-THFEEKBERET BTE2RRAT
MzEmE  (BREOEERERLE
BEBIFBERER L2 WmE: i)
ZERIEREBHIAEAEZAIGR
B EHZAEARER L2 FHKT
B iR mHEE -

BEARFEBHARRBEBEITRG 210%
AEBRESESTEL A BERE
BOIEMA FHITIARIARNO BE A
24,000,000 f% B 15 ©

BEMERETEREEZ2013F12 A
MR WMETAERESERH 17
£~ BUB - B HEisk k7 B R2013412 A
3NTHZTEEE THESAN SN KRITEZ
BB R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

24. Deferred Taxation 24, EEBIE
(@) Deferred tax assets and liabilities () BRNWELBBEERARE:
recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities RIERE MG N REREE TR E
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (BE)/BEAKRBOUKRERF
position and the movements during the year are as AR EEINT -
follows:
Revaluation
of property, Accelerated
plant and tax  Unused tax
equipment depreciation losses Total
B - IR B 3% KEA
BWEREE e BigEE &%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAET
Deferred tax arising from: FIEEMNETSE:
At 1 January 2012 H2012F1 A1 H 34 505 — 539
Credited to profit or loss FFAE=E — (51) (488) (539)
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31H 34 454 (488) —
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1 A1 H 34 454 (488) —
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (5t A\) /1R 1825 — 97 (117) (20)
Charged to other comprehensive 11 FR H t 2
income W= — — 20 20
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12A31H 34 551 (585) —

(b)

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has unused tax loss
of approximately HK$9,997,000 (2012: HK$6,541,000)
available for offset against future profits that may be
carried forward indefinitely. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of HK$3,550,000 (2012:
HK$2,958,000) of such tax loss. No further deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax loss due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

REISRE

i

BR2AF

(b) RERWELERIEEE

M2013F 124318 A& B 4 &
&) A~ T 18 B3 18 49 /59,997,000 7% 7T
(20124 : 6,541,000/ 7T) » A] F§ A K
SHR R AW ] IR AR A B o AN
2 gt Ik 55 7 18 & 18 1% 58 3,550,000
7 7T (2012 4F 2,958,000 7T ) 2 &
WERIEE E o oK BE T8 B R 2 F
KB MAARBEBEERE S
RIERIBEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

25. Capital and Reserves

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

25. ERXNH#E

(a) Share capital (@) B
2012
20124
No. of shares ~ Nominal value
B 15 B H{A
‘000 HK$'000
F & FHET
Ordinary shares of BRO1BITH
HK$0.1 each ZER
Authorised EE
At 1 January and M1TATE R
31 December 12A31H 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Ordinary share, ERTRHEZN
issued and fully paid ZTER
At 1 January R1A1H 200,000 20,000 3,800 380
Issue of shares upon &AL TR D
Capitalisation (note (i) (PR 3EG) — — 146,200 14,620
Issue of shares upon Placing fic & 21T AR 1D
(note (ii)) (B 7 Gi)) 40,000 4,000 50,000 5,000
At 31 December ®12A318 240,000 24,000 200,000 20,000
(i) Issue of Share upon Capitalisation (i) B EITRMD

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 23
December 2011, conditional on the share premium
account of the Company being credited by
HK$14,620,000 as a result of the placing of
50,000,000 ordinary shares as mentioned and
defined in (ii) below, an aggregate of 146,200,000
Shares, by way by capitalization of the sum of
HK$14,620,000 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company, would be issued,
allotted and credited as fully paid at par to the
Shareholders as appearing on the register of
members of the Company as of 23 December 2011.
Upon the Capitalization, the issued share capital of
the Company would become HK$15,000,000
divided into 150,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each.

B IE201ME12A238 @B N
BERRZR  FEARAKMGE
{8 8% /A 7 B 50,000,000 & i@
B (a0 R Gy praR it R R E)
JE 3 B 14,620,000 7T 18 » A
RNAESB B AR E D E R
i BE %814,620,00078 T £ &
A H R [ R2011F12A
VHABINAEARR KRR ZMH
RRZEEZETREZES &
146,200,000 B A BR 71 & 51 2 7Y
B e NEKRMIE  ADQAE
B 8 17 I8 & # /15,000,000 7%
JC * 9 150,000,000 I & fE E
E0.10B TR 5 -

Annual Report & #§ 2013

127



128

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt 7% R 7= MY &5 o)

25. Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

(if)

Issued of Share upon Placing

On 19 January 2012, 50,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued by way of placing at a
price of HK$ 0.80 per share (the “Placing Price 1")
for cash consideration of HK$40,000,000. The
excess of the Placing Price | over the par value of the
Shares issued was credited to the share premium
account.

On 30 August 2013, 40,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued by way of placing at a
price of HK$0.25 per share (the “Placing Price 1I")
for cash consideration of HK$10,000,000. The
excess of the Placing Price Il over the par value of
the Shares issued was credited to the share premium
account.

(b) Movements in components of equity

(i)

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z £l

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 59 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Merger reserve arose as a result of the
reorganization taken place on 20 December 2011
which represents the issued shares and share
premium of MiniLogic HK upon group
reorganization and the nil-paid issued of 380,000
shares of the Company which credited as fully paid.

Assets revaluation reserve is the revaluation increase
arising on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
a revalued property, plant and equipment, the
attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
asset revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained profits.

EREEBRALF

25.

BEARR#Em

(a) B (@)

(if)

A o & 2 1T IR 19
MR2012F1 8198 - & X &
aﬁﬂﬁaﬁﬁiwﬁ f%0.80 %
THERIESE | ) #1T
50,000,000 f% & [i% M {0.10/%
THEBERNBERRERE
40,000,000 L BB & E | &
HEesTROEEMNISE S BT
AR5 @B -
MR2013F8H30H - & A A

FEBEEHFAEER25E
THERIEESEI ] &1
40,000,000 % & % ™ 1H0.10/5
TCH @H&LM%HEE%WE

10000000,%75 [
HEBHTROEENBS B
A5 @B -
(b) #E=4H R ED
iy A&KE
AEBAFEREFNHES

BMMHEZH2I NGRS MG
BRFESOAMGAEDZEH K
A o

20011512 A208B B EAH m E
EMEHHEEESEEEHEM
Bl RIBEBNC BITRMND LK
159 % (B LA K KR B LA R B R
77 =\ E 17 #9380,000 i A B 71|
V=¥ a0l gv)

EEEHHEBEEDE BER
BEEREENEGRER T
KEMYE WELXERER
LESRER EEEHHB
ROEENEEELRSRERE
ﬁ—ﬁﬁiﬁ%m/ﬁnﬂ °



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

25. Capital and Reserves (Continued)

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

25. EXRK w#E @

(ii) The Company

(b) Movements in components of equity (Continued)

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the

year are set out below:

(ii) $Q ]

rEEZAE

T 25 & HE AR ﬁ,
) B HY R 48 BR 0 S BR B0

ﬁ

ri1

'

BEEHR - AQAEHE TZEE
PRAFEHNELR

AR ER 2

VEEFIE

LU

(Accumulated

losses)/
Share Share retained
capital premium profits Total
(RetER)
B’ A BRH=EE R EER a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FET FET FABT
Balance at 1 January 2012 R2012F1 A1 B &% 380 — (340) 40
Profit of the year FEB — — 7,242 7,242
Other comprehensive income Hib 2wk — — — —
Total comprehensive income 2HEK BT — — 7,242 7,242
Transactions with owner BEBEAZRS
Issue of shares upon HE AR LEITRGD
Capitalisation (note 25(a)(i)) (B 5% 25(a)()) 14,620 (14,620) — —
Issue of shares upon Placing e & BT AR 1D
(note 25(a)(ii) (B 5 25(a)ii) 5,000 35,000 — 40,000
Expenses incurred in connection 4 A 377 % 1
with the issue of shares ELXRNREX
during the year — (5,678) — (5,678)
19,620 14,702 — 34,322
Balance at 31 December 2012 M2012F12A31H
g 20,000 14,702 6,902 41,604
Balance at 1 January 2013 R2013F1 A1 B 4% 20,000 14,702 6,902 41,604
Loss of the year FEEBE — — (2,998) (2,998)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2wz — _ _ _
Total comprehensive expense THBAZBE — — (2,998) (2,998)
Transactions with owner : BEBEEAZRS:
Issue of shares upon Bl EZITIR M
Placing (note 25(a)(ii)) (B 3£ 25(a)i)) 4,000 6,000 — 10,000
Expenses incurred in FREITRG
connection with the issue EAXRNAX
of shares during the year — (265) — (265)
4,000 5,735 — 9,735
Balance at 31 December 2013 2013412 A31H
=g 24,000 20,437 3,904 48,341
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

25. Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(c) Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically. The Group considers the cost of
capital and risk associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through payment
of dividends, issuance of new shares as well as the raising

of new debts.

26. Operating Lease Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum

25. EXRK w#E @

(0 BEXAER
AEBERHEERNUAERANE EHE
TERBEFSELEERE T3 —H
MEEREBLLESERALEH AR
HERZAMER-
AEBNEARAEEBERNARES
AEEER(BREESHITRA - F#E
MARB & F) -
AEBENEEETCHBRTEARSE
B AEEERHEZEEATHEAN
§$&$ﬁﬂﬁ W& s @R

CEBETHIIRAMEFEUNTEHER

% BEARRE -

26. KREAEFAE

RBEHR RETAIBHELCEHEESA

lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease in respect NHEME B EREEERLNRTMT :
of leased properties are payable as follows:

2012
20124
HK$'000
FAET
Within one year —FR 434 406
After one year but within five years —FRERFA 312 544
746 950
Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by KEHENFETERAESERECRSE
the Group for its office premises and a warehouse in Hong BHRAZEBEMUREEEREMANES -HE

Kong. Lease payments are fixed throughout the lease term
agreed. None of the leased includes contingent rentals.

27. Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, 7 (2012: 6) employees of the Group
have completed the required number of years of service under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), to
be eligible for long service payments on termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make such payments
where the termination meets the circumstances specified in the

Ordinance.

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Z £l

EREEAR

n

=i

H ANIREBEHENHLBEE 2SHEEA

TERHAEE -

27' &/\\\ -~ 1$

M20139F12 /8318
F:6H)EEERKBEERSE

KEBEF745(2012
1 1% 15 Bl

(TR AP L) B9 PR 75 AR 75 F BT & BRI

TEAREERERBE - AKER

AL AT

A )BT38 R0 T A ME E B B

=
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27.

28.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Contingent Liabilities (continued)

If the termination of all such employees met the circumstances
set out in the Ordinance, the Group’s liability as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 would be approximately HK$94,000 and
HK$84,000 respectively. No provision has been made for these
amounts in the consolidated financial statements as the
directors of the Company are of the view that these amounts
are not expected to crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Material Related Party Transactions

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 11(a) and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 11(b), is as
follows:

27.

28.

Bt 7% R 3% B 5 @)

= A8 B @)

WMETA it B4R I RIS A Z &0 Fr
BB R R A S B R20134F 2012
F12A31B /M EE S B4 A94,000/% 7T
84,0008 70 c AEEWER B LSRN
RAVBRERTELRE BAEAQGE
EREEHELSERATABERIESE
o

Br LA EFT I T AN AN &£ B R2013F &
20RFNANAYETMNERKAGRE -

EXBEALIXRS

() TEEBAENH M

AEBXTEEBASNHE 21
WMHEEQ@QFFEESE X FARQ A
EEMNEREINOWE 10T
FENETESHMNEEN BN
—|T :

2012
20124
HK$'000
FBT

Salary and other short term employee benefits
Post employment benefits

B BB A

FehAEMEREERT

3,767 2,848
86 58

3,853 2,906

(b) Applicability of the GEM Listing Rules

relating to connected transactions

None of above related party transactions falls under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of GEM
Listing Rules.

(b) AIXER EMRAHEERS
B 38 A 1
RIFAIZR LR E20E  HE
TRBAEFRGIHEHERH R
BEMERHNTE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R 3% B & ca)

29. Comparative Amounts 29. ki 8
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform EFHRESEEREY  UFERFEEZ
to the current year's presentation. EXdp -

30. Authorisation of Issue of the Consolidated 30. B FI RS SHMBHREK
Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and EESER2014F3 198 #b & WK # T
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March IS S BEREK -
2014.

132 = Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZAISGREEER A A
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